
EFGHIJKJLMNOOPJQFROHSTGUOFJTFVJWOXYHJZT[Y
 
CDEFGEHIJ7897:9:7;<J=J>F?GJ@AHFGEHIJ;79:B9:7;< 

aEEF?EJbEJFHcV?EHJGKFGJdJ@JLVEEJGEEHJGJJFJHAEEGEJGKV?JFJcEDJAF[EJCVGFE@HVG[J?V[GFG@DE?MJbEIJDEJFEEJJIJGKE 

JGKEDJGF?e?JF??V[GEHJGJJdJ@JbdJdJ@DJF@GKJDVYEDJFDEJcV?VbEEJJGJdJ@DJGF?eJAF[EZJMKVEEJFJHAEEGVG[JGKV?JGF?eW 
AEEF?EJEG?@DEJGKFGJdJ@J?EEEFGJGKEJFJDDEFGJF@GKJDVYEDJhTiJORJjkFYJlmnJomKpqJJDJdJ@JHFdJGJGJbEJF??V[GEH 

GKEJFJDDEFGJGF?e?Z 

T\JLW]^^_J`abE CNDJOPKJ>LMJLNOJDPCPL>JQRDSPCTJCKTUTNSDM 

CDEEEFGJGFHEJIDJHJGKEJHDJAJHJLGJHEG@M 

c\JW]adeEdJafe]^dQgEdJhaiJOR KE[EGG?XL@GKJDVYEHJCKFDGEDJDFKJJE 
jkFYJlmGNnJomKpq 

COJDJGEFKGVFFEJDEF?JG?WJAEEF?EJDEX?EEEFG 
F@GKJDVYEDJGFHEJIDJHJGKEJHDJAJHJLG 

HEG@MZ 

M\JrQLedQWeJWJWLrJ^XJ_^WaeQ^` N\CJCDOJ;7 

VK\JLW]^^_JQ`X^dbaeQ^` 

aKPfLK\JLOOKTDD aNPNTJNRfgTK OLhJNRfgTK TfLP>JLOOKTDD 

;_i7JRGVcED?VGd
 
gJ@EEcFDHJgDJGjWJN\

;7B`^
 

Vo\JZ]^`EJW^`eaWeJ`fbZEdJX^dJaXeEdJ]^fdLJEbEd[E`WQEL 

CJGGFFGJNFHE LDGK@DJfJFeFbEE 

SVGEE OVDEFGJDJJIJPAEDFGVJG? 

THED[EGFdJaKJGEJN@HbEDJClllXlllX
llllM 

Y\JLW]^^_JYEZJarrdELLJhfd_q KGGAI99LLLZFK?E?]ZJD[9 

R\JraeEJ^XJQ`QeQa_JW]adeEd ;:9:7;^ 

[\JraeEJXQdLeJ^ZE`ErJX^d 7_9:7;` 

Q`LedfWeQ^` 
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NK\JaZZd^\ErJLW]^^_JbQLLQ^`JhdY[YFGinJ`]Wr^EnJTFVJZkRRTPOJZ^EJTkGNOHU^YV 

iMNOOPiJOFPIq 

fPDDPPNJDSLSTfTNS 

SKEJCKFDGEDJNV[KJDFKJJEJIJDJ>FLJFGHJDJFVFEJQ@?GVFEJLVEEJADJcVHEJ?G@HEGG?JIDJHJGKEJgDJGjJLVGKJF 

FJHADEKEG?VcEJKV[KJ?FKJJEJEH@FFGVJGJFGHJEFdJGKEJFFFHEHVFJFGHJ?JFVFEJ[DJ@GHLJDeJIJDJ?@FFE??JVGJFJEEE[E 

FGHJFFDEED?ZJR?VG[JFJGKEHEJJIJEFLJFGHJ?JFVFEJ]@?GVFEWJGKEJDFKJJEJLVEEJEG[F[EWVG?AVDEJFGHJEHAJLEDJFGHJVG? 
?G@HEGG?WJFGHJLVEEJEm@VAJGKEHJLVGKJGKEJFFFHEHVFJ?eVEE?JGJJEFDGJFJKE[EGG?JHVAEJHFJFGHJ[FVGJFHHV??VJGJGJ 

GKEJFJEEE[EJJIJGKEVDJFKJVFEJADEAFDEHJIJDJ?@FFE??ZJSKEJDFKJJEJLVEEJFDEFGEJFJAFGKLFdJIJDJVG?J?G@HEGG?JGJJEFL 

?FKJJEJFGHJFFDEED?JF?JFGGJDGEd?ZJSKEJAFGKLFdJLVEEJVGFE@HEJHEGGJDVG[JJAAJDG@GVGVE?JLVGKJEFLJ?G@HEGG?JFGH 

FGGJDGEd?JFGHJAFDGGED?KVA?JLVGKJVG?GVG@GVJG?JJIJKV[KEDJEEFDGVG[ZJSKE?EJVG?GVG@GVJG?JLVEEJJIIEDJFJEEE[EJFGH 

EFLJ?FKJJEJEjAEDVEGFE?JGJJJ@DJ?G@HEGG?JFGHJ?KFDEJLVGKJGKEHJGKEJFFFHEHVFJbEGFKHFDe?JFGHJKFbVG? 
GEFE??FDdJGJJ[FVGJEGGDFGFEJGJJFJEEE[EJFGHJEFLJ?FKJJEZ 
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No\J_E]JrELQ[`JE_EbE`eLJhdY[YFGinJ`]Wr^EnJTFVJZkRRTPOJZ^EJTkGNOHU^YVJiMNOOPi 

OFPIq 
nT\JOTDPUNJT>TfTNSDJCgDVEIJKEFHVG[JIJEEJLEHJbdJFJHE?FDVAGVJGJJIJEFFKJnEdJOE?V[GJTEEHEGG? 
CnOTMZJnOT?JFDEJGKJ?EJ[EGEDFEJF?AEFG?JJIJGKEJ?FKJJEJGKFGJFDEJVGGJcFGVcEJJDJ@GVm@EJGJJGKEJ?FKJJEo? 
HV??VJGJFGHJ[JFE?WJFDEJFJDEJGJJGKEJ?FKJJEo?JJcEDFEEJHE?V[GWJFGHJFDEJFDVGVFFEJGJJVG?J?@FFE??ZJSKE 

HE?V[GJEEEHEGG?JHFdJVGFE@HEJFJ?AEFVIVFJFJGGEGGJFDEFJIJF@?pJ@GVm@EJ?G@HEGGJAJA@EFGVJG?JGJJbE 

?EDcEHpJ?AEFVIVFJEH@FFGVJGFEJADJ[DFH?JJDJAEHF[J[VFFEJFAADJFFKE?pJ@GVm@EJFFEEGHFDWJ?FKEH@EEWJJD 
FJGIV[@DFGVJG?JJIJ?G@HEGG?JFGHJ?GFIIpJFGH9JDJVGGJcFGVcEJJD[FGVYFGVJGFEJ?GD@FG@DE?JFGHJ?d?GEH?Z 

qFDVFbEEJ; 

qFDVFbEEJ: 

qFDVFbEEJ^ 

qFDVFbEEJB
 

qFDVFbEEJ`
 

qFDVFbEEJi
 

qFDVFbEEJ8
 

qFDVFbEEJ<
 

qFDVFbEEJ_
 

qFDVFbEEJ;7
 

U\Je^ea_JE`d^__bE`eJ^`Jjf`E 

lmnJomKp 

LJFJHADEKEG?VcEJKV[KJ?FKJJEJF@DDVF@E@HJGKFGJEG[F[E?
?G@HEGG?JFGHJEHAJLED?JGKEHJGKDJ@[KJGKEJ?G@HdJJIJEFLJFGH
?JFVFEJ]@?GVFE 

PGHVcVH@FEVYEHJFFFHEHVFJ?@AAJDG?WJDEHEHVFGVJGWJFGH 
FFFEEEDFGVJGJEIIJDG?JGJJHEEGJGKEJGEEH?JJIJFEEJ?G@HEGG?ZJSKE?E 
EIIJDG?JVGFE@HEI 
XJPHEGGVIdVG[JFGHJFHHDE??VG[JVGHVcVH@FEJ?G@HEGGJEEFDGVG[
?GDEG[GK?JFGHJLEFeGE??E?
XJfJDEJGVHEJIJDJEEFDGVG[JFGHJ?GD@FG@DFEJ?@AAJDG?
XJTG[F[VG[J?G@HEGG?JVGJEEFDGVG[JFGHJHEcEEJAHEGG 

OFGFXbF?EHJHEFV?VJGXHFeVG[JFGHJEjGEGHEHJGVHEJIJD

AEFGGVG[JFGHJADJIE??VJGFEJHEcEEJAHEGGr
 

CNJJDE?AJG?EM 

CNJJDE?AJG?EM 

CNJJDE?AJG?EM 

CNJJDE?AJG?EM 

CNJJDE?AJG?EM 

CNJJDE?AJG?EM 

CNJJDE?AJG?EM 

^;` 

`\J[darELJLEd\ErJQ`JLW]^^_J]EadJomKabKp 

CKEFeJFEEJGKFGJFAAEd 

UDFHE?JDEDcEH _WJ;7WJ;; 
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cK\Jr^ELJe]EJLW]^^_ NJ 

W^`edaWeJYQe]JaJW]adeEdJ^d 

ErfWaeQ^`a_Jba`a[EbE`e 

^d[a`QgaeQ^`d 

J 

PK\JXaWQ_QeQEL 

OJE?JGKEJ?FKJJEJHFVGGFVGJJDJJAEDFGEJH@EGVAEEJ?VGE?s 

NJWJ]@?GJJGEJ?VGEZ 

Po\JLW]^^_JLQeEL 

aEEF?EJEV?GJGKEJ?VGE?JLKEDEJGKEJ?FKJJEJLVEEJJAEDFGEJIJDJGKEJ@AFJHVG[J?FKJJEJdEFDZ 

aKd?VFFE 
LHHDE?? 

aKJGE 
N@HbED 

OV?GDVFG9CDO UDFHE? 
DEDcEHJFG 
DVGEJCnX`WJiX_W 
EGFZM 

KEFEVcE? 
KEGGFE 
L??V?GFGFE 

KEGGFE 
L??V?GFGFE 
IJDJMKVFK 
UDFHE?JCLDVGE 
N9LJVI 
FAAEVFFbEEM 

DVGEJ; 
C?FHE 
F? 
ADVHFDd 
?VGEM 

;_i7 
RGVcED?VGd 
gJ@EEcFDHW
gDJGjWJN\
;7B`^ 

N\CJCDOJ;7 _X;; \E? _X;; 

DVGEJ:
 

DVGEJ^
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PoT\JZPYTiYJeHOXUVYJGNYJMOFGTMGJUFROHSTGUOFJROHJLUGYJK\
 

NFHE MJDeJaKJGE LEGEDGFGEJaKJGE THFVEJLHHDE?? 

DFKJJE 
>EFHED CJ@DGGEdJCDFLIJDH 

PAEDFGV 
JGFE 
>EFHED 

LDGK@DJfJFeFbEE 

CJHAEVF 
GFE 
CJGGFFG 

UFDdJnGV[KG 

CJHAEFV 
GG 
CJGGFFG 

CJ@DGGEdJCDFLIJDH 

OLDL 
CJJDHVG 
FGJD 

LDGK@DJfJFeFbEE 

SK\JaHYJTFIJiUGYiJUFJMObPOMTGYV 

ieTMYdJQRJIYinJePYTiYJeHOMYYVJGO 

GNYJFYfGJgkYiGUOF\ 

QXJ_^WaeErJQ`JZdQ\aeEJLZaWEJQ`J`]WJ^dJrQLedQWeLJ^feLQrEJ`]W 

Sl\JfePOTVJTJMkHHYFGJWYHGURUMTGYJORJ^MMkeTFMIJhW^^qJROHJYTMNJiMNOOPJiUGYJGNTG 
UiJPOMTGYVJUFJeHUXTGYJieTMYJUFJ`]WJOHJPOMTGYVJOkGiUVYJORJ`]W\JEfMYeGJROHJiMNOOPiJUF 

VUiGHUMGJieTMYJhMObPOMTGUOFJieTMYqnJiMNOOPJSkiGJeHOXUVYJTJMOeIJORJGNYJTFFkTPJRUHY 

UFieYMGUOFJHYeOHG\ 

LUGYJKJWYHGURUMTGYJORJ^MMkeTFMIJhW^^q 

KGGA?I99Gd?EHXF?JXDEAJDG?ZIE@VHDEcVELZFJH9DE?A9;8^88^8<9dOaShDiIqd9 

LUGYJKJXUHYJQFieYMGUOFJdYeOHG 

KGGA?I99Gd?EHXF?JXDEAJDG?ZIE@VHDEcVELZFJH9DE?A9;8^88^8<9GgQGHmjLnR9 

LUGYJoJWYHGURUMTGYJORJ^MMkeTFMI 

CNJJDE?AJG?EM 

NJ
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LUGYJoJXUHYJQFieYMGUOFJdYeOHG 

CNJJDE?AJG?EM 

LUGYJlJWYHGURUMTGYJORJ^MMkeTFMI 

CNJJDE?AJG?EM 

LUGYJlJXUHYJQFieYMGUOFJdYeOHG 

CNJJDE?AJG?EM 

FK\JYYHYJGNYHYJTFIJHYXUiUOFiJGO NJ
 

GNYJiMNOOPhiJMNTHGYHJVkHUF[JGNY
 

omKabKpJiMNOOPJIYTHdJhZPYTiY
 

UFMPkVYJTeeHOXYVJOHJeYFVUF[
 

STGYHUTPJTFVJFOFbSTGYHUTP
 
MNTHGYHJHYXUiUOFiq\
 

O\J`TSYJTFVJZOiUGUOFJOR LDGK@DJfJFeFbEEWJOJ@GHVG[JOVDEFGJDJJIJPAEDFGVJG?
 
QFVUXUVkTPhiqJYNOJWOSePYGYVJGNUi
 

aFFkTPJdYeOHG\
 

e\J^kHJiU[FTGkHYiJh]YTVJORJLMNOOPJTFVJZOTHVJZHYiUVYFGqJcYPOiJTGGYiGJGNTGJTPPJORJGNY
 

UFROHSTGUOFJMOFGTUFYVJNYHYUFJUiJGHkGNRkPJTFVJTMMkHTGYJTFVJGNTGJGNUiJMNTHGYHJiMNOOPJUi
 

UFJMOSePUTFMYJiUGNJTPPJTieYMGiJORJUGiJMNTHGYHnJTFVJiUGNJTPPJeYHGUFYFGJXYVYHTPnJLGTGYnJTFV
 

POMTPJPTiinJHY[kPTGUOFinJTFVJHkPYi\JYYJkFVYHiGTFVJGNTGJURJTFIJUFROHSTGUOFJUFJTFIJeTHG
 
ORJGNUiJHYeOHGJUiJROkFVJGOJNTXYJcYYFJVYPUcYHTGYPIJSUiHYeHYiYFGYVnJGNTGJiUPPJMOFiGUGkGY
 

[HOkFViJROHJGNYJHYXOMTGUOFJORJOkHJMNTHGYH\JWNYMcJ]ELJURJIOkJT[HYYJTFVJGNYFJkiYJGNY
 

SOkiYJOFJIOkHJZWJOHJGNYJiGIPUiGJOFJIOkHJSOcUPYJVYXUMYJGOJiU[FJIOkHJFTSYq\
 

\E? 

LU[FTGkHYnJ]YTVJORJWNTHGYHJLMNOOP 
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LU[FTGkHYnJZHYiUVYFGJORJGNYJZOTHVJORJeHkiGYYi
 

rTGY :7;<97<97; 

eNTFcJIOk\ 
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Page 1 of 2 

Certificate of Occupancy 
CO Number: 220561434T005 

This certifies  that the premises described herein  conforms  substantially  to  the  approved plans and specifications and to the 
requirements of all applicable laws, rules and regulations for the uses and occupancies specified.  No change of use or occupancy 
shall be made unless a new Certificate of Occupancy is issued. This document  or a copy shall be available for inspection at  the 
building at all reasonable times. 

A. 

B. 

C. 

D. 

E. 

Borough: Bronx 

Address: 1960 UNIVERSITY AVENUE 

Building Identification Number (BIN): 2094544 

Block Number: 02868 

Building Type: 
Altered 

Lot Number(s): 111 

Certificate Type: Temporary 

Effective Date: 07/13/2018 

10/11/2018 Expiration Date: 

This building is subject to this Building Code:  1968 Code 

For zoning lot metes & bounds, please see BISWeb. 

Construction classification: 

Building Occupancy Group classification: 

Multiple Dwelling Law Classification: 

E 

None 

(2014/2008 Code) 

1-B (1968 Code designation) 

No. of stories: Height in feet: No. of dwelling units: 5  75  0 

Fire Protection Equipment: 
Fire alarm system 

Type and number of open spaces: 
None associated with this filing. 

This Certificate is issued with the following legal limitations: 
None 

Outstanding requirements for obtaining Final Certificate of Occupancy: 

There are 9 outstanding requirements. Please refer to BISWeb for further detail. 

Borough Comments: 

OK TO RENEW TCO FOR 90 DAYS 

Borough Commissioner Commissioner 

DOCUMENT CONTINUES ON NEXT PAGE 



               
      

 

           

 

                            
        

 
 

 

                                                                 
                                                                 
                                                            

 

 

Page 2 of 2 

Certificate of Occupancy 
CO Number: 220561434T005 

Permissible Use and Occupancy 
All Building Code occupancy group designations below are 2008 designations. 

Floor 
From To 

Maximum 
persons 
permitted 

Live load 
lbs per 
sq. ft. 

Building 
Code 
occupancy 
group 

Dwelling or 
Rooming 
Units 

Zoning 
use group Description of use 

CEL OG 1 3B MECH. EQUIPMENT ROOM F-2 

001 001 100770 4A HOUSE OF WORSHIP. A-3 

002 002 75 226 3A SCHOOL CLASS ROOMS, ADMINISTRATION 
OFFICES 

E 
B 

003 003 75 223 3A SCHOOL CLASS ROOMS, ADMINISTRATION 
OFFICES 

E 
B 

004 004 75 163 3A SCHOOL CLASS ROOMS OFFICES. E 
B 

005 005 75 142 3A SCHOOL CLASS ROOMS, ADMINISTRATION 
OFFICES, LIBRARY ROOM 

E 
B 

END OF SECTION 

Borough Commissioner Commissioner 

END OF DOCUMENT 220561434/005 7/13/2018 10:11:59 AM 
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�p�Q�� 

K]JLEoJMbSpJN`_`EJSEqbS` 
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eVPWHGTHJfOPQQRfJOQvURTGZFyJITWH 
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EFGHIJKJLHMNHOPPJQMRSHTJUMSVP
 
CDEFGEHIJ789:89:7;<J=J>F?GJ@AHFGEHIJ;;97;9:7;< 

LWXUWEYYJQXZ[W\J]^[WQEWJUX[_Y 

BCFDHJCDJEEFEGG?HF@GICDJKEHJFGHJLMCNOPHF@GICDJKEHJQIFDGEDJ?QICCR?JCGR34JCC5AREGEJGIEJGF6RE?JADC7JHEH4 
>J?GJEFQIJFCFRJFGHJ5EF?@DEJF?JQCGGFJGEHJJGJGIEJ?QICCR8?JQ@DDEGGR3JFAADC7EHJQIFDGED9JFGHJJGHJQFGEJ:IEGIED 
GIEJ?QICCRJIF?J5EGJCDJGCGJ5EGJGIEJFCFR4J;REF?EJADC7JHEJJGDCD5FGJCGJDCDJFRRJJFCFR?J63JLC7E56EDJ;?G4 

`aJ[][\Ebc]JYQd\EeQJLEWfXWb[e]EJUX[_Y 

<DJAEDDCD5FGQEJHFGFJJ?JGCGJF7FJRF6REJ63J=@F@?GJ;?G9JAREF?EJ?GFGEJGIJ?JJGJGIEJRF?GJQCR@5GJFGHJ@AHFGEJ63 

LC7E56EDJ;?G4 

gh`ij`kJLHMNHOPPJQMRSHTJ[GGSlFmOFGJMnJ[oSTOmloJUMSVP 

=QFHE5JQJ>G@HEGG
 
;EDDCD5FGQEJ?CFR
 

=QFHE5 
JQJ?CFR 
; 

=QFHE5 
JQJ?CFR 
: 

CC5AREGJCGJCD 
FDFH@FGJCG 
DEE@JDE5EGG?IJBIE 
>QICCRF?JAIJRC?CAI3 
FGHJEGAEQGFGJCGJJ? 
GIFGJEFQIJ?G@HEGGJ:JRR 
D@RDJRRJFRRJLM>PN 
FDFH@FGJCG 
DEE@JDE5EGG?JFGH 
FDFH@FGEJJGJDC@D 
3EFD?J:JGIJFJEEFEGG? 
HJARC5F4 

CC5AREGJCGJCD 
FDFH@FGJCG 
DEE@JDE5EGG?IJBIE 
>QICCRF?JAIJRC?CAI3 
FGHJEGAEQGFGJCGJJ? 
GIFGJEFQIJ?G@HEGGJ:JRR 
D@RDJRRJFRRJLM>PN 
FDFH@FGJCG 
DEE@JDE5EGG?JFGH 
FDFH@FGEJJGJDC@D 
3EFD?J:JGIJFJEEFEGG? 
HJARC5F4 

@EF?@DEJA?EHJGC ?CFRJHJ@EGJCDJLCGJ@EG <GHJQFGEJJDJHFGFJJ?JGCG 
P7FR@FGEJ;DCFDE?? F7FJRF6RE4J<D9:IEG 
BC:FDHJ=GGFJG5EGGJCD F7FJRF6RE9JNE?QDJ6E 
?CFR PDDCDG?J>QICCRJCJRR 

BFDEJ<DJ?CFRJ<?JLCG 
@EG 

=6?CR@GEJ@EF?@DEI 
8HIJCDJEFQIJIJFI 
?QICCRJFQQC@GGF6JRJG3 
QCICDGJ:JRRJ5EEGJFRR 
FDFH@FGJCG 
DEE@JDE5EGG?J63JGIE 
EGHJCDJGIEJDC@DGI 
3EFDJCDJ?G@H34 

CC5AFDFGJ7E 
@EF?@DEIJPFQIJ3EFD9 
GIEJAEDQEGGFFEJCD 
?G@HEGG?JFDFH@FGJGF 
FDGEDJDC@DJ3EFD?JCD 
?G@H3J:JRRJEGQEEH 
GIFGJCDJGIEJQCICDG 
DDC5JGIEJRCQFRJC>N4 

BIJ?JFCFRJQFGGCGJ6E 
FHHDE??EHJF?J:7;8H 
;<J:F?JGIEJGIJDHJ3EFD 
CDJCAEDFGJCGJDCDJGIE 
?QICCR9JFGHJCGR3JJGI 
H;;GIJ?DFHEJ?G@HEGG? 
:EDEJEGDCRREH4 

BIJ?JFCFRJQFGGCGJ6E 
FHHDE??EHJF?J:7;8H 
;<J:F?JGIEJGIJDHJ3EFD 
CDJCAEDFGJCGJDCDJGIE 
?QICCR9JFGHJCGR3JJGI 
H;;GIJ?DFHEJ?G@HEGG? 
:EDEJEGDCRREH4 

LCGJFRRJQCICDG? 
FQIJE7EHJGIJ?JFCFR4J<G 
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=QFHE5 
JQJ?CFR 
K 

CCRREFEJFGHJCFDEED 
EEFHJGE??IJ>G@HEGG? 
:JRRJHE5CG?GDFGE 
5F?GED3JCDJQCGGEGG 
FGHJ?DJRR?JF? 
ADE?QDJ6EHJ63JGIE 
LE:JMCDDJ>GFGEJFGH 
CC55CGJCCDE 
>EFDGJGFJ>GFGHFDH? 
FGHJLE:JMCDDJ>GFGE 
EEFEGG? 
EGF5JGFGJCG?J 

=6?CR@GEJ@EF?@DE?I 
8HIJCDJEFQIJIJFI 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 


Board of Trustees 
Charter High School for Law and Social Justice 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Charter High School for Law and Social Justice, which 
comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2018, and the related statements of activities and changes 
in net assets, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial 
statements. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, 
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit 
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable 
to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United 
States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements are free from material misstatement.   

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, 
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion.  
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial 
statements. 
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion.  

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position 
of Charter High School for Law and Social Justice as of June 30, 2018, and the changes in its net assets and its cash 
flows for the year then ended, in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America. 

Report on Summarized Comparative Information 
We have previously audited Charter High School for Law and Social Justice’s June 30, 2017 financial statements, 
and we expressed an unmodified audit opinion on those audited financial statement in our report dated October 18, 
2017. In our opinion, the summarized comparative information presented herein as of June 30, 2017 is consistent, in 
all material respects, with the audited financial statements from which it has been derived. 

Other Report Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 11, 2018 on our 
consideration of Charter High School for Law and Social Justice’s internal control over financial reporting and on 
our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other 
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting 
and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial 
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government 
Auditing Standards in considering Charter High School for Law and Social Justice’s internal control over financial 
reporting and compliance. 

Rochester, New York 
October 11, 2018 
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CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL FOR LAW AND SOCIAL JUSTICE
	

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 


JUNE 30, 2018 

(With Comparative Totals for 2017) 


June 30, 
ASSETS 2018 2017 

CURRENT ASSETS
 Cash 
  Cash in escrow 
  Grants and other receivables 
  Prepaid expenses and other current assets 

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 

1,139,671 $ 282,905$ 
75,283 75,151
300,377 434,908
151,910 164,613 

1,667,241 957,577 

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, net 669,720 475,779 

TOTAL ASSETS 2,336,961 $ 1,433,356 $ 

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

CURRENT LIABILITIES
  Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 199,852 $ 50,597 
  Accrued payroll and benefits 293,079 73,655
  Deferred revenue 325,950 114,949 

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 818,881 239,201 

NET ASSETS
 Unrestricted 1,518,080 1,170,155
  Temporarily restricted - 24,000 

TOTAL NET ASSETS 1,518,080 1,194,155 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS $ 2,336,961 $ 1,433,356 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL FOR LAW AND SOCIAL JUSTICE
	

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS 


YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 

(With Comparative Totals for 2017) 


Year ended June 30, 
2018 2017 

Temporarily 
Unrestricted restricted Total Total 

Operating revenue and support:
  State and local per pupil
    operating revenue 6,237,582 $ -$ $ 6,237,582 $ 4,228,308 
  Government grants 310,720 - 310,720 253,876
  Private grants 800 - 800 44,942
  Contributed services 39,200 - 39,200 77,699
  Interest income 133 - 133 89
  Net assets released from restriction 24,000 (24,000)  - -

TOTAL OPERATING 
REVENUE AND SUPPORT 6,612,435 (24,000) 6,588,435 4,604,914 

Expenses:
  Program:
    Regular education 4,574,957 - 4,574,957 2,887,851
 Special education 920,039 - 920,039 527,436
  Management and general 703,905 - 703,905 678,225
  Fundraising and special events 65,609  - 65,609 59,602 

TOTAL EXPENSES 6,264,510  - 6,264,510 4,153,114 

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 347,925 (24,000) 323,925 451,800 

Net assets at beginning of year 1,170,155 24,000 1,194,155 742,355 

NET ASSETS AT END OF YEAR 1,518,080 $ -$ $ 1,518,080 $ 1,194,155 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL FOR LAW AND SOCIAL JUSTICE
	

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
	

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 

(With Comparative Totals for 2017) 


Year ended June 30, 2018 

Program Services Supporting Services 
Fundraising Management 

No. of Regular Special and and 
Positions Education Education Sub-total Special Events General Sub-total Total 2017 

Personnel services costs:
  Administrative staff personnel

 12 

$ 232,607 $ 165,417 $ 398,024 $               36,621 $              331,139 $         367,760 $             765,784 $          690,239 
  Instructional personnel

 30 

             2,052,536                 306,964              2,359,500 

- - -

         2,359,500    1,343,919 
  Non-instructional personnel

 1 

1,026 410 
1,436 

-

2,667                  2,667                 4,103            26,821 

Total salaries and wages

 43 

             2,286,169                 472,791              2,758,960                 36,621               333,806     370,427          3,129,387       2,060,979 

Fringe benefits and payroll taxes  444,011 92,091                 536,102 7,116                 64,862   71,978             608,080          373,910 
Legal service  73,637 15,273 88,910 1,180       10,757                11,937             100,847            95,071 
Accounting/audit services

 - - - -

              101,090         101,090             101,090          175,615 
Other purchased/professional/consulting services  113,445 17,394                 130,839 

100 
5,688                  5,788             136,627          23,777 

Building and land rent/lease  760,358         157,704                 918,062  12,186               111,076              123,262          1,041,324          625,484 
Repairs and maintenance  143,171 29,695                 172,866 2,295                 20,915                23,210             196,076          146,586 
Insurance  30,090    6,241 36,331 

482 
4,396                  4,878             41,209            31,300 

Utilities

 7,718 1,601

 9,319 
124 

1,128                  1,252            10,571            10,921 
Supplies/materials  112,719 18,226                 130,945 363 3,310                  3,673             134,618            92,096 
Equipment/furnishings

 8,330 1,449 9,779 
55 

505 560               10,339            16,777 
Staff development  169,590 25,471                 195,061 

-
-

-             195,061            70,630 
Marketing/recruitment

 2,633 510 
3,143 

32 
291 323                 3,466            18,085 

Technology  106,444  22,077                 128,521 1,706                 15,550                17,256      145,777          110,760 
Food service

 - - - - - - -
  3,613 

Student services  107,649 16,168                 123,817 -
-

-             123,817            97,394 
Office expense  54,910  11,389 66,299 

880 
8,021                  8,901              75,200            62,946 

Depreciation and amortization  152,388 31,606                 183,994 2,442                 22,261                24,703             208,697          127,142 
Other

 1,695 353 
2,048 

27 
249 276                 2,324            10,028 

$ 4,574,957 $ 920,039 $ 5,494,996 $               65,609 $              703,905 $              769,514 $          6,264,510 $       4,153,114 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL FOR LAW AND SOCIAL JUSTICE
	

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
	

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 

(With Comparative Totals for 2017) 


Year ended June 30, 
2018 2017 

CASH FLOWS - OPERATING ACTIVITIES
  Change in net assets 323,925 $ 451,800$ 
  Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash
    provided from operating activities:
      Depreciation and amortization 208,697 127,142
      Loss on disposal of property and equipment - 3,085
      Changes in certain assets and liabilities affecting operations:
        Grants and other receivables 134,531 (23,723)
        Prepaid expenses and other current assets 12,703 (115,783)
        Accounts payable and accrued expenses 149,255 (107,150)
        Accrued payroll and benefits 219,424 50,923
        Deferred revenue 211,001 97,718 

NET CASH PROVIDED FROM 
OPERATING ACTIVITIES 1,259,536 484,012 

CASH FLOWS - INVESTING ACTIVITIES
  Purchases of property and equipment (402,638)  (301,469)
  Proceeds from sale of property and equipment - 4,859 
  Change in cash in escrow (132) (26,089) 

NET CASH USED FOR 
INVESTING ACTIVITIES (402,770) (322,699) 

NET INCREASE IN CASH 856,766 161,313 

Cash at beginning of year 282,905 121,592 

CASH AT END OF YEAR 1,139,671 $ 282,905$ 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL FOR LAW AND SOCIAL JUSTICE 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2018 

(With Comparative Totals for 2017) 


NOTE A: THE CHARTER SCHOOL AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The Charter School 
Charter High School for Law and Social Justice (the “Charter School”) is an educational corporation that operates 
as a charter school in Bronx, New York. The Charter School provides students from Southern Bronx with a 
comprehensive high school education and lays the academic and social groundwork for success in college and 
careers. Using the theme of law and social justice, the Charter School will engage, inspire and empower students, 
and will equip them with the academic skills to earn a regents diploma and gain admission to the college of their 
choice, prepared for success. On December 17, 2013 the Board of Regents of the University of the State of New 
York granted the Charter School a provisional charter valid for a term of five years and renewable upon 
expiration. In March 2014, the Board of Regents of the University of the State of New York approved a charter 
revision to the provisional charter, to use the year ended June 30, 2015 as a planning year; therefore, the charter 
term expires June 30, 2020. 

Financial Statement presentation 
The financial statements of the Charter School have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting in 
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP).  The Charter 
School reports information regarding its financial position and activities according to three classes of net assets: 
unrestricted net assets, temporarily restricted net assets and permanently restricted net assets. 

These classes of net assets are defined as follows: 

Permanently restricted – Net assets resulting from contributions and other inflows of assets whose use by the 
Charter School is limited by donor-imposed stipulations that neither expire by passage of time nor can be 
fulfilled or otherwise removed by actions of the Charter School. The Charter School had no permanently 
restricted net assets at June 30, 2018 or 2017. 

Temporarily restricted – Net assets resulting from contributions and other inflows of assets whose use by the 
Charter School is limited by donor-imposed stipulations that either expire by passage of time or can be fulfilled 
and removed by actions of the Charter School pursuant to those stipulations. The Charter School had no 
temporarily restricted net assets at June 30, 2018 and $24,000 in temporarily restricted net assets restricted for 
summer bridge programs at June 30, 2017.  

Unrestricted – The net assets over which the Governing Board has discretionary control to use in carrying on 
the Charter School’s operations in accordance with the guidelines established by the Charter School. The 
Board may designate portions of the current unrestricted net assets for specific purposes, projects or investment. 

Revenue and support recognition 
Revenue from state and local governments resulting from the Charter School’s charter status and based on the 
number of students enrolled is recorded when services are performed in accordance with the charter agreement. 

Revenue from federal, state and local government grants and contracts are recorded by the Charter School when 
qualifying expenditures are incurred and billable or the requirements of the grant are met. 

Contributions are recognized as revenue in the year the pledge is received and documented.   
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CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL FOR LAW AND SOCIAL JUSTICE 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Cont’d 

JUNE 30, 2018 

(With Comparative Totals for 2017) 


NOTE A: THE CHARTER SCHOOL AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, 
Cont’d 

Contributions 
Contributions received are recorded as unrestricted, temporarily or permanently restricted support depending on 
the existence of any donor restrictions. A contribution that is received and expended in the same year for a 
specific purpose is classified as unrestricted revenue. 

Contributions are recorded as restricted support if they are received with donor stipulations that limit the use of 
the donated assets. When a donor restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated purpose restriction is 
accomplished, temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets and reported in the 
statement of activities and changes in net assets as net assets released from restrictions. 

Cash 
Cash balances are maintained at financial institutions located in New York and are insured by the Federal Deposit 
Insurance Corporation up to $250,000 at each institution. In the normal course of business, the cash account 
balances at any given time may exceed insured limits. However, the Charter School has not experienced any 
losses in such accounts and does not believe it is exposed to significant risk in cash.   

Cash in escrow
	
The Charter School maintains cash in an escrow account in accordance with the terms of its charter agreement.  

The amount in escrow was $75,283 and $75,151 at June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively.   


Grants and other receivables 
Grants and other receivables are stated at the amount management expects to collect from outstanding balances.  
Management provides for probable uncollectible amounts based on its assessment of the current status of individual 
receivables from grants, agencies and others. Balances that are still outstanding after management has used 
reasonable collection efforts are written off against the allowance for doubtful accounts. There was no allowance 
for doubtful accounts at June 30, 2018 or 2017. 

Property and equipment 
Property and equipment are recorded at cost. Depreciation and amortization are computed using the straight-line 
method on a basis considered adequate to depreciate the assets over their estimated useful lives, which range 
from three to twenty years.   

Contributed services 
The Charter School receives contributed services from volunteers to serve on the Board of Trustees. The Charter 
School received transportation services, speech therapist, occupational therapist and food supplies from the local 
district. The Charter School was unable to determine a value for these services. 

The Charter School received no contributed legal expenses for the year ended June 30, 2018. The Charter School 
received contributed legal services which were valued at $35,549 for the year ended June 30, 2017. The Charter 
School also was provided with space at a local private college rent free, the estimated value of this contributed 
space was $39,200 and $42,150 for the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively. These amounts are 
included in contributed services on the accompanying statement of activities and changes in net assets. 
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CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL FOR LAW AND SOCIAL JUSTICE 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Cont’d 

JUNE 30, 2018 

(With Comparative Totals for 2017) 


NOTE A: THE CHARTER SCHOOL AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, 
Cont’d 

In kind contributions
	
Gifts and donations other than cash are recorded at fair market value at the date of contribution.  


Tax exempt status 
The Charter School is a tax-exempt organization under section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and 
applicable state regulations and, accordingly, is exempt from federal and state taxes on income. 

The Charter School files Form 990 tax returns in the U.S. federal jurisdiction. The tax returns for the years ended 
June 30, 2015 through June 30, 2018 are still subject to potential audit by the IRS.  Management of the Charter 
School believes it has no material uncertain tax positions and, accordingly it will not recognize any liability for 
unrecognized tax benefits. 

Marketing costs 
The Charter School expenses marketing costs as they are incurred. Total marketing and recruiting costs 
approximated $3,500 and $18,000 for the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively. 

Deferred revenue 
The Charter School records grant revenue as deferred revenue until it is expended for the purpose of the grant, at 
which time it is recognized as revenue. 

Use of estimates in the preparation of financial statements 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of 
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and 
the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those 
estimates. 

Comparative for period ended June 30, 2017 
The financial statements include certain prior year summarized comparative information in total but not by net 
asset class or functional classification. Such information does not include sufficient detail to constitute a 
presentation in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
Accordingly, such information should be read in conjunction with the Charter School’s financial statements for 
the year ended June 30, 2017, from which the summarized information was derived. 

Subsequent events 
The Charter School has conducted an evaluation of potential subsequent events occurring after the statement of 
financial position date through October 11, 2018, which is the date the financial statements are available to be 
issued. No subsequent events requiring disclosure were noted, except as disclosed in Note H. 
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CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL FOR LAW AND SOCIAL JUSTICE
	

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Cont’d 


JUNE 30, 2018 

(With Comparative Totals for 2017) 


NOTE B: PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 

Property and equipment consisted of the following: 

June 30, 
2018 2017 

Furniture and fixtures 263,225$ $ 130,363 
Office equipment 369,829 202,978 
Computers and equipment 172,197 131,173 
Software 8,640 7,065 
Leasehold improvements 229,052 160,907 
Construction in progress 12,506 20,325 

1,055,449 652,811 
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization 385,729 177,032 

669,720$ $ 475,779 

At June 30, 2018, the Charter School had construction in progress of $12,506 related to the design of their new 
facility.  No provision for depreciation will be made for these costs until the space is put into use. 

NOTE C: SCHOOL FACILITY 

The Charter School leased its facility from a third party commencing July 1, 2015 through June 2017. In August 
2016, the Charter School signed a lease for a new facility which expires June 30, 2036. The Charter School, 
upon signing this new lease, terminated the existing lease. Total rent expense was approximately $1,002,000 and 
$583,000 for the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively. The Charter School will be increasing the 
amount of space occupied at the facility over the first three years of the lease. 

Future expected minimum payments for this lease is approximately as follows: 

Year ending June 30, Amount 

2019 $ 1,346,000 
2020 1,346,000 
2021 1,346,000 
2022 1,460,410 
2023 1,460,410 

Thereafter 20,900,110

 $ 27,858,930 
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CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL FOR LAW AND SOCIAL JUSTICE
	

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Cont’d 


JUNE 30, 2018 

(With Comparative Totals for 2017) 


NOTE D: OPERATING LEASE 


The Charter School entered into non-cancelable lease agreements for office equipment expiring at various dates
	
through September 2021. Lease expense was approximately $14,400 and $7,200 for the years ended June 30, 

2018 and 2017, respectively. Future expected minimum payments for these leases are approximately as follows: 


Year ending June 30, Amount 

2019 
2020 
2021 
2022 

$ 

$ 

14,400 
14,400 
8,100 
1,800

       38,700 

NOTE E: CONTINGENCY 

Certain grants and contracts may be subject to audit by funding sources. Such audits might result in disallowance 
of costs submitted for reimbursement by the Charter School. Management is of the opinion that such 
disallowances, if any, will not have a material effect on the accompanying financial statements. Accordingly, no 
amounts have been provided in the accompanying financial statements for such potential claims. 

NOTE F: CONCENTRATIONS 

Grants and other receivables due from the federal government approximated 20% and 16% for the years ended 
June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively.  At June 30, 2018, approximately 79% of grants and other receivables are 
due from New York State related to per pupil funding. At June 30, 2017, approximately 83% of grants and other 
receivables are due from a New York State agency related to a certain grant. 

Approximately 95% and 92% of total operating revenue and support came from per-pupil funding provided by 
New York State for the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively. The per-pupil rate is set annually by 
the State based on the school district in which the Charter School’s students are located.   

NOTE G: RETIREMENT PLAN 

The Charter School began to sponsor a 401(k) retirement plan (the “Plan”) for its employees, effective January 1, 
2018. The Plan allows for the Charter School to make discretionary contributions to the Plan. The Charter 
School contributed approximately $2,000 and $800, respectively, for the employee match and administrative fees 
to the Plan for the year ended June 30, 2018. 

NOTE H: SUBSEQUENT EVENT 

In August 2018, the New York State Education Department (NYSED) notified the Charter School that it had 
over-allocated approximately $16,275 in Title IIA funding to the Charter School for the year ended June 30, 
2018. NYSED will reduce the Charter School’s Title IIA funding for a period of up to five years to recoup the 
over-allocated funding.  The Charter School has not accounted for this over-allocated funding as a liability as of 
June 30, 2018. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND 

ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS
 

Board of Trustees 
Charter High School for Law and Social Justice 

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller 
General of the United States, the financial statements of Charter High School for Law and Social Justice, which 
comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2018 and the related statements of activities and changes 
in net assets, functional expenses and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial 
statements, and have issued our report thereon dated October 11, 2018. 

Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Charter High School for Law and 
Social Justice’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for 
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Charter High School for Law and Social Justice’s internal 
control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Charter High School for Law and Social 
Justice’s internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will 
not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to 
merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting 
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant 
deficiencies may exist that were not identified. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, 
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.   
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Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Charter High School for Law and Social Justice’s financial 
statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on 
the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those 
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.  The results of our 
tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government 
Auditing Standards. 

We noted certain matters that we have reported to management of Charter High School for Law and Social Justice in 
a separate letter dated October 11, 2018. 

Purpose of This Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the 
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on 
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards 
in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance.  Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any 
other purpose. 

Rochester, New York 
October 11, 2018 
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October 11, 2018
	

Finance Committee 
Charter High School for Law and Social Justice 

We have audited the financial statements of Charter High School for Law and Social Justice as of and for the year 
ended June 30, 2018, and have issued our report thereon dated October 11, 2018. Professional standards require that 
we advise you of the following matters relating to our audit. 

Our Responsibility in Relation to the Financial Statement Audit 

As communicated in our engagement letter dated May 24, 2018, our responsibility, as described by professional 
standards, is to form and express an opinion about whether the financial statements that have been prepared by 
management with your oversight are presented fairly, in all material respects, in conformity with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Our audit of the financial statements does not relieve 
you or management of its respective responsibilities. 

Our responsibility, as prescribed by professional standards, is to plan and perform our audit to obtain reasonable, 
rather than absolute, assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit of 
financial statements includes consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, as part of our audit, we 
considered the internal control of Charter High School for Law and Social Justice solely for the purpose of 
determining our audit procedures and not to provide any assurance concerning such internal control. 

We are also responsible for communicating significant matters related to the audit that are, in our professional 
judgment, relevant to your responsibilities in overseeing the financial reporting process. However, we are not 
required to design procedures for the purpose of identifying other matters to communicate to you. 

We have provided our comments regarding control deficiencies and other matters noted during our audit in a 
separate letter to you dated October 11, 2018. 
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Planned Scope and Timing of the Audit 

We conducted our audit consistent with the planned scope and timing we previously communicated to you. 

Compliance with All Ethics Requirements Regarding Independence 

The engagement team, others in our firm, as appropriate, and our firm have complied with all relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence. 

Qualitative Aspects of the Entity’s Significant Accounting Practices 

Significant Accounting Policies 

Management has the responsibility to select and use appropriate accounting policies. A summary of the significant 
accounting policies adopted by Charter High School for Law and Social Justice is included in Note A to the 
financial statements. There have been no initial selection of accounting policies and no changes in significant 
accounting policies or their application during the year June 30, 2018. No matters have come to our attention that 
would require us, under professional standards, to inform you about (1) the methods used to account for significant 
unusual transactions and (2) the effect of significant accounting policies in controversial or emerging areas for 
which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. 

Significant Accounting Estimates 

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are based on 
management’s current judgments. Those judgments are normally based on knowledge and experience about past 
and current events and assumptions about future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive 
because of their significance to the financial statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting 
them may differ markedly from management’s current judgments. 

The most sensitive accounting estimates affecting the financial statements are the allocations of operating expenses 
to program expenses, management and general expenses, and fundraising expenses and the collectability of grants 
receivable and estimated lives of property and equipment. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to 
develop the estimates and determined that they are reasonable in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a 
whole. 

Financial Statement Disclosures 

Certain financial statement disclosures involve significant judgment and are particularly sensitive because of their 
significance to financial statement users. The most sensitive disclosures affecting Charter High School for Law and 
Social Justice’s financial statements relate to revenue and support recognition, which is referred to in the notes of 
the financial statements. 
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Significant Difficulties Encountered during the Audit 

We are pleased to report we encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management relating to the 
performance of the audit. 

Uncorrected and Corrected Misstatements 

For purposes of this communication, professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely 
misstatements identified during the audit, other than those that we believe are trivial, and communicate them to the 
appropriate level of management. Further, professional standards require us to also communicate the effect of 
uncorrected misstatements related to prior periods on the relevant classes of transactions, account balances or 
disclosures, and the financial statements as a whole. Management has corrected all such misstatements. In addition, 
none of the misstatements detected as a result of our audit procedures and corrected by management were material, 
either individually or in the aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a whole. 

Disagreements with Management 

For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a matter, whether or 
not resolved to our satisfaction, concerning a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing matter, which could be 
significant to Charter High School for Law and Social Justice’s financial statements or the auditor’s report. We are 
pleased to report no such disagreements arose during the course of the audit. 

Representations Requested from Management 

We have requested certain written representations from management, which are included in the management 
representation letter.  

Management’s Consultations with Other Accountants 

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting matters. 
Management informed us that, and to our knowledge, there were no consultations with other accountants regarding 
auditing and accounting matters. 

Other Significant Matters, Findings or Issues 

In the normal course of our professional association with Charter High School for Law and Social Justice, we 
generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing standards, 
business conditions affecting the entity, and business plans and strategies that may affect the risks of material 
misstatement. None of the matters discussed resulted in a condition to our retention as Charter High School for Law 
and Social Justice’s auditors. 

* * * * * 
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Should you desire further information concerning these matters, Michelle Cain or Kate Welc will be happy to meet 
with you at your convenience. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Trustees, Finance Committee and 
management of Charter High School for Law and Social Justice and is not intended to be and should not be used by 
anyone other than these specified parties. 

Very truly yours, 

MENGEL, METZGER, BARR & CO. LLP 
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October  11,  2018 
 	

Board of Trustees 
Charter High School for Law and Social Justice 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of Charter High School for Law and Social Justice 
(the “Charter School”) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018, in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America, we considered the Charter School’s internal control over financial 
reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for 
the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion 
on the effectiveness of the Charter School’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Charter School’s internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies in internal 
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements 
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. 

 Reasonably possible. The chance of the future event or events occurring is more than remote but less than 
likely. 

 Probable. The future event or events are likely to occur.  

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this letter and 
was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses. Given these 
limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material 
weaknesses.  However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

Our audit was also not designed to identify deficiencies in internal control that might be significant deficiencies. A 
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a 
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. We do not consider 
the following matter to be a significant deficiency or material weakness. 
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Petty cash account 
During our 2018 audit, it was noted that a petty cash fund of approximately $6,000 was present but not recorded in 
the Charter School’s general ledger. The Charter School’s Financial Policies and Procedures Manual (“FPPM”) 
states petty cash funds should not be utilized. A log was kept, recording receipts and expenses for the petty cash 
fund; however, all expenses do not appear to be accounted for. There is no significant or material effect to the 
financial statements relative to the petty cash fund.  

Recommendation 
We recommend the Charter School adhere to their FPPM and not utilize a petty cash fund or form a set of 
policies and controls surrounding the use of the petty cash fund and document these policies and controls 
in the FPPM. 

Status of matters included in our letters as of June 30, 2017 and 2016, dated October 18, 2017 and October 19, 
2016 

Debit Card Receipts 
During our 2017 audit, we noted two debit card transactions that were missing a receipt, one of which did not have 
proper approval, as required by the FPPM. 

Recommendation 
We recommend the cardholder be required to maintain original receipts, invoices, purchase documents 
and correspondence related to all purchases made using the Charter School’s debit card. 

Status of as June 30, 2018 
During our 2018 audit, we noted all transaction tested had proper support.  

Financial Policies and Procedures 
During our 2016 audit, we noted certain financial policies and procedures which were designed to ensure timely 
identification of material errors and accurate reporting were not always followed. Our audit of the Charter School 
revealed the following: 

	 We noted the closing of a Charter School’s cash account was not approved by the Board of Trustees. 

	 The FPPM states purchases over $10,000 require signatures from the Principal and Board President, or 
designated Board Officer in his/her absence. MMB noted there was no approval by the Board President 
or designated Board Officer for one purchase over $10,000 selected for testing. There was also no 
mention of this approval in the Board minutes. 

Recommendation 
The Charter School has extensive policies and procedures which are formally documented in the FPPM 
and has hired an outside financial consultant to assist with these controls. We recommend the Charter 
School continue to implement these internal controls as documented in the FPPM. If revisions to these 
policies or procedures are required to reflect changes, they should be documented and disseminated to all 
affected personnel. 
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Status of as June 30, 2018 
During our 2018 audit, we noted purchases tested above $10,000 were approved by the Board 
President. We also noted no cash accounts were closed in the current year. However, we noted a 
bank transfer occurred on October 11, 2017 and was approved by the Charter School’s Principal, with 
no signature of the positions listed in the FPPM: Director of Operations, Board Chair, or Board 
Treasurer. This is not in accordance with the FPPM. 

* * * * * 

This communication is intended solely for the information and use of Management and the Board of Trustees and is 
not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

We appreciate the outstanding cooperation from your staff that our personnel received during the audit of the 
Charter School’s financial statements. Should you have any questions or comments, please contact Michelle Cain 
or Kate Welc. 

Very  truly  yours,  

MENGEL,  METZGER, BARR & CO. LLP 
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Annual Financial Statement Audit Report 

School Name: The Charter High School for Law & Social Justice 

Date (Report is due Nov. 1): November 1, 2018 

Primary District of Location 
(If NYC select NYC DOE): 

New York City Department of Education 

If located in NYC DOE select CSD: NYCSD #10 

School Fiscal Contact Name: Gary Knight 
School Fiscal Contact Email: 
School Fiscal Contact Phone: 

School Audit Firm Name: Mengel Metzger Barr & Co. LLP 
School Audit Contact Name: Michelle Cain 
School Audit Contact Email: 
School Audit Contact Phone: 

Audit Period: 2017-18 
Prior Year: 2016-17 

The following items are required to be included: 

1.) The independent auditor’s report on financial statements and notes.
�
2.) Excel template file containing the Financial Position, Statement of Activities, Cash Flow and Functional
�
Expenses worksheets.
�
3.) Reports on internal controls over financial reporting and on compliance.
�

The additional items listed below should be included if applicable. Please explain the reason(s) if the items are
�
not included. Examples might include: a written management letter was not issued; the school did not expend
�
federal funds in excess of the Single Audit Threshold of $750,000; the management letter response will be
�
submitted by the following date (should be no later than 30 days from the submission of the report); etc.
�

Item If not included, state the reason(s) below (if not applicable fill in N/A): 

Management Letter Included 

Management Letter Response n/a 

Federal Single Audit (A-133) n/a 

Corrective Action Plan n/a 





               
     
     

 
    

   
 

 
   

  
   

 
    
 

 
  

 

 

 
    

     
    

   
 

 
  

 

 
       

 
   

  
 

 

The Charter High School for Law & Social Justice
 
Statement of Financial Position
 

as of June 30
 

CURRENT ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Grants and contracts receivable 
Accounts receivables 
Prepaid Expenses 
Contributions and other receivables 
Other current assets 

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 

NON-CURRENT ASSETS 
Property, Building and Equipment, net 
Restricted Cash 
Security Deposits 
Other Non-Current Assets 

TOTAL NON-CURRENT 
ASSETS 
TOTAL ASSETS 

$ 

$ 

2018 

1,214,954 
296,379 

3,998 
151,910 

-
-

1,667,241 

669,720 
-
-
-

669,720 

2,336,961 

$ 

$ 

2017 

358,056 
429,747 

5,161 
164,613 

-
-

957,577 

475,779 
-
-
-

475,779 

1,433,356 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 
Accrued payroll, payroll taxes and benefits 
Current Portion of Loan Payable 
Due to Related Parties 
Refundable Advances 
Deferred Revenue 
Other Current Liabilities 

TOTAL CURRENT 
LIABILITIES 
LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 

Loan Payable; Due in More than One Year 
Deferred Rent 
Due to Related Party 
Other Long-Term Liabilities 

TOTAL LONG-TERM 
LIABILITIES 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 

$ 

$ 

199,852 
293,079 

-
-
-

325,950 
-

818,881 

-
-
-
-
-

818,881 

$ 

$ 

50,597 
73,655 

-
-
-

114,949 
-

239,201 

-
-
-
-
-

239,201 



 

 
 

   

       

NET ASSETS 
Unrestricted 
Temporarily restricted 
Permanently restricted 

TOTAL NET ASSETS 

$ 1,518,080 
-
-

1,518,080 

$ 1,170,155 
24,000 

-
1,194,155 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 2,336,961 1,433,356 



               
   

     

 
        
       
      

 
   
  
   
   

 
 
 

 
  

  

 

       

     
   

  
 

 
   

       

               
 

     

         
   

The Charter High School for Law & Social Justice
 
Statement of Activities
 

as of June 30
 

2018 2017 

Unrestricted Temporarily 
Restricted 

Total Total 

OPERATING REVENUE 
State and Local Per Pupil Revenue - Reg. Ed 
State and Local Per Pupil Revenue - SPED 
State and Local Per Pupil Facilities Revenue 
Federal Grants 
State and City Grants 
Other Operating Income 
Food Service/Child Nutrition Program 

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE 

$ 4,768,789 
341,072 

1,002,125 
286,141 
150,175 

-
-

6,548,302 

$ - $ 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

4,768,789 
341,072 

1,002,125 
286,141 
150,175 

-
-

6,548,302 

$ 3,421,773 
117,604 
583,333 
234,477 
124,996 

-
-

4,482,184 

EXPENSES 
Program Services 

Regular Education 
Special Education 
Other Programs 

Total Program Services 
Management and general 
Fundraising 
TOTAL EXPENSES 

$ 4,574,957 
920,039 

-
5,494,996 

703,905 
65,609 

6,264,510 

$ - $ 
-
-
-
-
-
-

4,574,957 
920,039 

-
5,494,996 

703,905 
65,609 

6,264,510 

$ 2,887,851 
527,436 

-
3,415,287 

678,225 
59,602 

4,153,114 

SURPLUS / (DEFICIT) FROM OPERATIONS 283,792 - 283,792 329,070 

SUPPORT AND OTHER REVENUE 
Interest and Other Income 
Contributions and Grants 
Fundraising Support 
Investments 
Donated Services 
Other Support and Revenue 

TOTAL SUPPORT AND OTHER REVENUE 

$ 133 
800 

-
-

39,200 
-

40,133 

$ - $ 
-
-
-
-
-
-

133 
800 

-
-

39,200 
-

40,133 

$ 89 
44,942 

-
-

77,699 
-

122,730 

Net Assets Released from Restrictions / Loss on Disposal 
of Assets 
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 

$ 24,000 

347,925 (24,000) 

-

323,925 

$ -

451,800 

NET ASSETS - BEGINNING OF YEAR 

PRIOR YEAR/PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS 

$ 1,170,155 
-

$ 24,000 
-

$ 1,194,155 
-

$ 742,355 
-

$ (24,000) $ 



         NET ASSETS - END OF YEAR $ 1,518,080 $ - $ 1,518,080 $ 1,194,155 



               
     

     

       
    

    
 

   

 
  

 
 

 
 
 

   
 

 
 

         

       
  

         

       
    

         

             
    

             

The Charter High School for Law & Social Justice
 
Statement of Cash Flows
 

CASH FLOWS - OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Increase (decrease) in net assets 
Revenues from School Districts 
Accounts Receivable 
Due from School Districts 
Depreciation 
Grants Receivable 
Due from NYS 
Grant revenues 
Prepaid Expenses 
Accounts Payable 
Accrued Expenses 
Accrued Liabilities 
Contributions and fund-raising activities 
Miscellaneous sources 
Deferred Revenue 
Interest payments 
Other 
Other 

NET CASH PROVIDED FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

CASH FLOWS - INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Purchase of equipment 
Other 

NET CASH PROVIDED FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

CASH FLOWS - FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Principal payments on long-term debt 
Other 

NET CASH PROVIDED FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 
Cash at beginning of year 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR 

as of June 30 

2018 2017 

$ 323,925 
-

$ 451,800 
-

- -
- -

208,697 
134,531 

-

127,142 
(23,723) 

-
- -

12,703 
148,524 
220,156 

-

(115,783) 
(105,450) 

49,223 
-

- -
- -

211,001 
-

97,718 
-

-
-

3,085 
-

$ 1,259,536 $ 484,012 

$ 

$ 

(402,638) 
(132) 

(402,770) 

$ 

$ 

(296,610) 
(26,089) 

(322,699) 

$ 
-

$ 
-

- -
$ - $ -

$ 

$ 

856,766 
282,905 

1,139,671 

$ 

$ 

161,313 
121,592 
282,905 



               
     

     

   
 

 
         

  
 

 
   

    

  
 

   
    

 
     
  

  
  

 
   

  
 

 

 

The Charter High School for Law & Social Justice
 
Statement of Functional Expenses
 

as of June 30
 

2018 

No. of 
Positions 

Regular 
Education 

Program Services 
Special 

Education 
Other 

Education 
Total 

Supporting Services 

Fundraising Management 
and General 

Total 

Personnel Services Costs 
Administrative Staff Personnel 
Instructional Personnel 
Non-Instructional Personnel 

Total Salaries and Staff 
Fringe Benefits & Payroll Taxes 
Retirement 

12.00 
30.00 

1.00 
43.00 

$ 
232,607 

2,052,536 
1,026 

2,286,169 
444,011 

-

$ 
165,417 
306,964 

410 
472,791 

92,091 
-

$ 
-
-
-
-
-
-

$ 
398,024 

2,359,500 
1,436 

2,758,960 
536,102 

-

$ 
36,621 

-
-

36,621 
7,116 

-

$ 
331,139 

-
2,667 

333,806 
64,862 

-

$ 
367,760 

-
2,667 

370,427 
71,978 

-
Management Company Fees 
Legal Service 
Accounting / Audit Services 
Other Purchased / Professional / 
Consulting Services 
Building and Land Rent / Lease 
Repairs & Maintenance 
Insurance 
Utilities 
Supplies / Materials 
Equipment / Furnishings 
Staff Development 
Marketing / Recruitment 
Technology 
Food Service 

-
73,637 

-
113,445 

760,358 
143,171 

30,090 
7,718 

112,719 
8,330 

169,590 
2,633 

106,444 
-

-
15,273 

-
17,394 

157,704 
29,695 

6,241 
1,601 

18,226 
1,449 

25,471 
510 

22,077 
-

-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

-
88,910 

-
130,839 

918,063 
172,866 

36,331 
9,319 

130,945 
9,779 

195,061 
3,143 

128,521 
-

-
1,180 

-
99 

12,186 
2,295 

482 
124 
363 

55 
-

32 
1,706 

-

-
10,757 

101,090 
5,688 

111,076 
20,915 

4,396 
1,128 
3,310 

505 
-

291 
15,550 

-

-
11,937 

101,090 
5,787 

123,262 
23,210 

4,878 
1,251 
3,673 

560 
-

323 
17,256 

-
Student Services 
Office Expense 
Depreciation 
OTHER 
Total Expenses 

107,649 
54,910 

152,388 
1,695 

$ 4,574,957 

16,168 
11,389 
31,606 
353 

$ 920,039 $ 

-
-
-
-
- $ 

123,817 
66,298 

183,994 
2,048 

5,494,996 

-
880 

2,442 
27 

$ 65,609 

-
8,021 

22,261 
249 

$ 703,905 $ 

-
8,901 

24,704 
276 

769,514 



The Charter High School for Law & Social Justice
Statement of Functional Expenses

as of June 30

2018

  

               
     

     

2017

 Total 

$ 
765,784 

2,359,500 
4,103 

3,129,387 
608,080 

-
-

100,847 
101,090 
136,626 

$ 
817,582 

1,216,576 
26,821 

2,060,979 
373,911 

-
-

95,071 
175,615 

23,777 

$ 

1,041,325 
196,075 

41,209 
10,570 

134,618 
10,339 

195,061 
3,466 

145,777 
-

123,817 
75,200 

208,698 
2,324 

6,264,509 $ 

625,483 
146,587 

31,300 
10,921 
92,096 
16,777 
70,630 
18,084 

110,761 
3,613 

97,394 
62,947 

127,142 
10,027 

4,153,114 
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October 11, 2018
	

Finance Committee 
Charter High School for Law and Social Justice 

We have audited the financial statements of Charter High School for Law and Social Justice as of and for the year 
ended June 30, 2018, and have issued our report thereon dated October 11, 2018. Professional standards require that 
we advise you of the following matters relating to our audit. 

Our Responsibility in Relation to the Financial Statement Audit 

As communicated in our engagement letter dated May 24, 2018, our responsibility, as described by professional 
standards, is to form and express an opinion about whether the financial statements that have been prepared by 
management with your oversight are presented fairly, in all material respects, in conformity with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Our audit of the financial statements does not relieve 
you or management of its respective responsibilities. 

Our responsibility, as prescribed by professional standards, is to plan and perform our audit to obtain reasonable, 
rather than absolute, assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit of 
financial statements includes consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, as part of our audit, we 
considered the internal control of Charter High School for Law and Social Justice solely for the purpose of 
determining our audit procedures and not to provide any assurance concerning such internal control. 

We are also responsible for communicating significant matters related to the audit that are, in our professional 
judgment, relevant to your responsibilities in overseeing the financial reporting process. However, we are not 
required to design procedures for the purpose of identifying other matters to communicate to you. 

We have provided our comments regarding control deficiencies and other matters noted during our audit in a 
separate letter to you dated October 11, 2018. 
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Planned Scope and Timing of the Audit 

We conducted our audit consistent with the planned scope and timing we previously communicated to you. 

Compliance with All Ethics Requirements Regarding Independence 

The engagement team, others in our firm, as appropriate, and our firm have complied with all relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence. 

Qualitative Aspects of the Entity’s Significant Accounting Practices 

Significant Accounting Policies 

Management has the responsibility to select and use appropriate accounting policies. A summary of the significant 
accounting policies adopted by Charter High School for Law and Social Justice is included in Note A to the 
financial statements. There have been no initial selection of accounting policies and no changes in significant 
accounting policies or their application during the year June 30, 2018. No matters have come to our attention that 
would require us, under professional standards, to inform you about (1) the methods used to account for significant 
unusual transactions and (2) the effect of significant accounting policies in controversial or emerging areas for 
which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. 

Significant Accounting Estimates 

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are based on 
management’s current judgments. Those judgments are normally based on knowledge and experience about past 
and current events and assumptions about future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive 
because of their significance to the financial statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting 
them may differ markedly from management’s current judgments. 

The most sensitive accounting estimates affecting the financial statements are the allocations of operating expenses 
to program expenses, management and general expenses, and fundraising expenses and the collectability of grants 
receivable and estimated lives of property and equipment. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to 
develop the estimates and determined that they are reasonable in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a 
whole. 

Financial Statement Disclosures 

Certain financial statement disclosures involve significant judgment and are particularly sensitive because of their 
significance to financial statement users. The most sensitive disclosures affecting Charter High School for Law and 
Social Justice’s financial statements relate to revenue and support recognition, which is referred to in the notes of 
the financial statements. 
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Significant Difficulties Encountered during the Audit 

We are pleased to report we encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management relating to the 
performance of the audit. 

Uncorrected and Corrected Misstatements 

For purposes of this communication, professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely 
misstatements identified during the audit, other than those that we believe are trivial, and communicate them to the 
appropriate level of management. Further, professional standards require us to also communicate the effect of 
uncorrected misstatements related to prior periods on the relevant classes of transactions, account balances or 
disclosures, and the financial statements as a whole. Management has corrected all such misstatements. In addition, 
none of the misstatements detected as a result of our audit procedures and corrected by management were material, 
either individually or in the aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a whole. 

Disagreements with Management 

For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a matter, whether or 
not resolved to our satisfaction, concerning a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing matter, which could be 
significant to Charter High School for Law and Social Justice’s financial statements or the auditor’s report. We are 
pleased to report no such disagreements arose during the course of the audit. 

Representations Requested from Management 

We have requested certain written representations from management, which are included in the management 
representation letter.  

Management’s Consultations with Other Accountants 

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting matters. 
Management informed us that, and to our knowledge, there were no consultations with other accountants regarding 
auditing and accounting matters. 

Other Significant Matters, Findings or Issues 

In the normal course of our professional association with Charter High School for Law and Social Justice, we 
generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing standards, 
business conditions affecting the entity, and business plans and strategies that may affect the risks of material 
misstatement. None of the matters discussed resulted in a condition to our retention as Charter High School for Law 
and Social Justice’s auditors. 

* * * * * 
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Should you desire further information concerning these matters, Michelle Cain or Kate Welc will be happy to meet 
with you at your convenience. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Trustees, Finance Committee and 
management of Charter High School for Law and Social Justice and is not intended to be and should not be used by 
anyone other than these specified parties. 

Very truly yours, 

MENGEL, METZGER, BARR & CO. LLP 
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October  11,  2018 
 	

Board of Trustees 
Charter High School for Law and Social Justice 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of Charter High School for Law and Social Justice 
(the “Charter School”) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018, in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America, we considered the Charter School’s internal control over financial 
reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for 
the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion 
on the effectiveness of the Charter School’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Charter School’s internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies in internal 
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements 
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. 

 Reasonably possible. The chance of the future event or events occurring is more than remote but less than 
likely. 

 Probable. The future event or events are likely to occur.  

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this letter and 
was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses. Given these 
limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material 
weaknesses.  However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

Our audit was also not designed to identify deficiencies in internal control that might be significant deficiencies. A 
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a 
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. We do not consider 
the following matter to be a significant deficiency or material weakness. 
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Petty cash account 
During our 2018 audit, it was noted that a petty cash fund of approximately $6,000 was present but not recorded in 
the Charter School’s general ledger. The Charter School’s Financial Policies and Procedures Manual (“FPPM”) 
states petty cash funds should not be utilized. A log was kept, recording receipts and expenses for the petty cash 
fund; however, all expenses do not appear to be accounted for. There is no significant or material effect to the 
financial statements relative to the petty cash fund.  

Recommendation 
We recommend the Charter School adhere to their FPPM and not utilize a petty cash fund or form a set of 
policies and controls surrounding the use of the petty cash fund and document these policies and controls 
in the FPPM. 

Status of matters included in our letters as of June 30, 2017 and 2016, dated October 18, 2017 and October 19, 
2016 

Debit Card Receipts 
During our 2017 audit, we noted two debit card transactions that were missing a receipt, one of which did not have 
proper approval, as required by the FPPM. 

Recommendation 
We recommend the cardholder be required to maintain original receipts, invoices, purchase documents 
and correspondence related to all purchases made using the Charter School’s debit card. 

Status of as June 30, 2018 
During our 2018 audit, we noted all transaction tested had proper support.  

Financial Policies and Procedures 
During our 2016 audit, we noted certain financial policies and procedures which were designed to ensure timely 
identification of material errors and accurate reporting were not always followed. Our audit of the Charter School 
revealed the following: 

	 We noted the closing of a Charter School’s cash account was not approved by the Board of Trustees. 

	 The FPPM states purchases over $10,000 require signatures from the Principal and Board President, or 
designated Board Officer in his/her absence. MMB noted there was no approval by the Board President 
or designated Board Officer for one purchase over $10,000 selected for testing. There was also no 
mention of this approval in the Board minutes. 

Recommendation 
The Charter School has extensive policies and procedures which are formally documented in the FPPM 
and has hired an outside financial consultant to assist with these controls. We recommend the Charter 
School continue to implement these internal controls as documented in the FPPM. If revisions to these 
policies or procedures are required to reflect changes, they should be documented and disseminated to all 
affected personnel. 
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Status of as June 30, 2018 
During our 2018 audit, we noted purchases tested above $10,000 were approved by the Board 
President. We also noted no cash accounts were closed in the current year. However, we noted a 
bank transfer occurred on October 11, 2017 and was approved by the Charter School’s Principal, with 
no signature of the positions listed in the FPPM: Director of Operations, Board Chair, or Board 
Treasurer. This is not in accordance with the FPPM. 

* * * * * 

This communication is intended solely for the information and use of Management and the Board of Trustees and is 
not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

We appreciate the outstanding cooperation from your staff that our personnel received during the audit of the 
Charter School’s financial statements. Should you have any questions or comments, please contact Michelle Cain 
or Kate Welc. 

Very  truly  yours,  

MENGEL,  METZGER, BARR & CO. LLP 
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FOR THE YEAR ENDING 
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Make check 
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Form 8868 Application for Automatic Extension of Time To File an 
(Rev. January 2017) Exempt Organization Return OMB No. 1545-1709

Department of the Treasury 
| File a separate application for each return. 

Internal Revenue Service | Information about Form 8868 and its instructions is at .www.irs.gov/form8868 

(e-file).Electronic filing You can electronically file Form 8868 to request a 6-month automatic extension of time to file any of the 

forms listed below with the exception of Form 8870, Information Return for Transfers Associated With Certain Personal Benefit 

Contracts, for which an extension request must be sent to the IRS in paper format (see instructions). For more details on the electronic 
www.irs.gov/efile e-file Charities and Non-Profits.filing of this form, visit , click on Charities & Non-Profits, and click on for 
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All corporations required to file an income tax return other than Form 990-T (including 1120-C filers), partnerships, REMICs, and trusts 
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AND SOCIAL JUSTICE 
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MAY 15, 20191 I request an automatic 6-month extension of time until , to file the exempt organization return 
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|D calendar year or 
X JUL 1, 2017 JUN 30, 2018|D tax year beginning , and ending .
�

2 If the tax year entered in line 1 is for less than 12 months, check reason: D Initial return D Final return
�

D Change in accounting period
�

3a If this application is for Forms 990-BL, 990-PF, 990-T, 4720, or 6069, enter the tentative tax, less any 

nonrefundable credits. See instructions. 3a $ 0. 
b If this application is for Forms 990-PF, 990-T, 4720, or 6069, enter any refundable credits and 

estimated tax payments made. Include any prior year overpayment allowed as a credit. 3b $ 0. 
c Balance due. Subtract line 3b from line 3a. Include your payment with this form, if required, 

by using EFTPS (Electronic Federal Tax Payment System). See instructions. 3c $ 0. 
Caution: If you are going to make an electronic funds withdrawal (direct debit) with this Form 8868, see Form 8453-EO and Form 8879-EO for payment 
instructions. 

LHA For Privacy Act and Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see instructions. Form 8868 (Rev. 1-2017) 

723841 04-01-17 

1.1 
12401101 781764 CHS1192 2017.04030 CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL FOR LAW CHS11921

www.irs.gov/efile


                                                  

 

001/R1/04F000Citibank CBO Services 174 
P.O. Box 6201 000 
Sioux Falls, SD 57117-6201 CITIBANK, N. A. 

Account 

Statement PeriodTHE CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL FOR LAW
 
AND SOCIAL JUSTICE Jun 1 - Jun 30, 2018 
1960 UNIVERSITY AVE Relationship Manager
BRONX NY 10453 Citibusiness Service Center 

(877) 528-0990 
Page 1 of 2 

CitiBusiness®  ACCOUNT AS OF JUNE 30, 2018 

Relationship Summary: 

Checking ----­
Savings $75,283.37 
Checking Plus ----­

SERVICE CHARGE SUMMARY FROM MAY 1, 2018 THRU MAY 31, 2018 

Type of Charge No./Units Price/Unit Amount 

CITIBUSINESS IMMA # 

Average Daily Collected Balance $75,252.43 

Total Charges for Services $0.00 

Net Service Charge $0.00 

SAVINGS ACTIVITY
 

CitiBusiness IMMA 
Beginning Balance: $75,267.90 
Ending Balance: $75,283.37 

Date Description Debits Credits Balance 

06/29 INTEREST EARNED 15.47 75,283.37 

Interest earned year to date $75.76 

Your CitiBusiness IMMA Account Rates 
For Balances of $0 

to 
$24,999 

$25,000 $50,000 $100,000 $500,000 
to to to to 

$49,999 $99,999 $499,999 $999,999 

$1,000,000 
to 

$9,999,999 

$10,000,000 

and over 
6/01 - 6/30 0.100% 0.250% 0.250% 0.350% 0.350% 0.350% 0.350% 

http:75,283.37
http:75,283.37
http:75,267.90


001/R1/04F000
Page 2 of 2 

AND SOCIAL JUSTICE Statement Period: Jun 1 - Jun 30, 2018 
THE CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL FOR LAW Account 

CUSTOMER SERVICE INFORMATION
 

IF YOU HAVE QUESTIONS ON: YOU CAN CALL: YOU CAN WRITE: 

Insured Money Market 877-528-0990 
(For Speech and Hearing 
Impaired Customers Only 
TDD: 800-945-0258) 

CitiBusiness 
100 Citibank Drive 
San Antonio, TX 78245-9966 

For change in address, call your account officer or visit your branch. 

© 2018 Citigroup Inc. Citibank, N.A. Member FDIC. 
Citibank with Arc Design and CitiBusiness are registered service marks of Citigroup Inc. 
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New York State Education Department 
Request for Proposals to Establish Charter Schools Authorized by the
­

Board of Regents
­

2018-19 Budget & Cash Flow Template 

General Instructions and Notes for New Application Budgets and Cash Flows Templates 

1 Complete ALL SIX columns in BLUE 
2 Enter information into the GRAY cells 

3 
Cells containing RED triangles in the upper right corner in columns B through G contain guidance on 
that particular item 

4 

School district per-pupil tuition information is located on the State Aid website at 
https://stateaid.nysed.gov/charter/. Rows may be inserted in the worksheet to accomodate 
additional districts if necessary. 

5 

The Assumptions column should be completed for all revenue and expense items unless the item is 
self-explanatory. Where applicable, please reference the page number or section in the application 
narrative that indicates the assumption being made. For instance, student enrollment would 
reference the applicable page number in Section I, C of the application narrative. 



        
   

      
                        

 

 
 

 
  

   

  

 

   
     

   
    
    
    
    

- - - -

  

  
    - - -

   
  

 
   

    

      

  
    - - -

   
   

 
     

      
    

 
  

      - -

  - -

     
 

 
   

The Charter High School for Law & Social Justice
­
PROJECTED BUDGET FOR 2018-2019
­

July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2019
­
Please Note: The student enrollment data is entered below in the Enrollment Section beginning in row 155. This will populate the data in row 10. 

Total Revenue 
Total Expenses 

Net Income 
Actual Student Enrollment 

Total Paid Student Enrollment 

REGULAR 
EDUCATION 

SPECIAL 
EDUCATION 

8,139,958 637,029 
6,401,818 1,028,292 
1,738,140 (391,262) 

428 47 
- -

OTHER 

-
-
-

FUNDRAISING MANAGEMENT & 
GENERAL 

- 100 
168,472 1,104,419 

(168,472) (1,104,319) 

TOTAL 

8,777,087 
8,703,000 

74,087 
-
-

PROGRAM SERVICES 

REGULAR 
EDUCATION 

SPECIAL 
EDUCATION OTHER 

SUPPORT SERVICES 

FUNDRAISING 
MANAGEMENT & 

GENERAL TOTAL 

REVENUE 
REVENUES FROM STATE SOURCES 

Per Pupil Revenue CY Per Pupil Rate 
District of Location $15,307.00 
School District 2 (Enter Name) $17,794.00 
School District 3 (Enter Name) $15,023.00 
School District 4 (Enter Name) 
School District 5 (Enter Name) 

6,436,594 -
88,970 -
30,046 -

- -
- -

6,555,610 

-
-
-
-
-

- -
- -
- -
- -
- -

6,436,594 
88,970 
30,046 

-
-

6,555,610 

Special Education Revenue 
Grants 

Stimulus 
Other 

Other State Revenue 
TOTAL REVENUE FROM STATE SOURCES 

REVENUE FROM FEDERAL FUNDING 
IDEA Special Needs 
Title I 
Title Funding - Other 
School Food Service (Free Lunch) 
Grants 

Charter School Program (CSP) Planning & Implementation 
Other 

Other Federal Revenue 
TOTAL REVENUE FROM FEDERAL SOURCES 

LOCAL and OTHER REVENUE 
Contributions and Donations, Fundraising 
Erate Reimbursement 
Interest Income, Earnings on Investments, 
NYC-DYCD (Department of Youth and Community Developmt.) 
Food Service (Income from meals) 
Text Book 
Other Local Revenue 

TOTAL REVENUE FROM LOCAL and OTHER SOURCES 

TOTAL REVENUE 

- 441,585 

- -
- -

1,369,822 168,981 
7,925,432 610,566 

24,035 2,965 
153,150 18,893 

5,897 727 
- -

- -
- -
- -

183,082 22,585 

- -
- -
- -
- -
- -

31,443 3,879 
- -

31,443 3,879 

8,139,958 637,029 

-

-
-
-

-
-
-
-

-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-

- -

- -
- -
- -

- -
- -
- -
- -

- -
- -
- -

- -
- -
- 100 
- -
- -
- -
- -

100 

100 

441,585 

-
-

1,538,803 
8,535,998 

27,000 
172,043 

6,624 
-

-
-
-

205,667 

-
-

100 
-
-

35,322 
-

35,422 

8,777,087 

EXPENSES 
ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF PERSONNEL COSTS No. of Positions 

Executive Management - - - - - -
Instructional Management 4.00 204,800 102,400 25,600 179,200 512,000 
Deans, Directors & Coordinators 5.00 304,764 37,596 - - 342,360 
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The Charter High School for Law & Social Justice 
PROJECTED BUDGET FOR 2018-2019 

July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2019 
Please Note: The student enrollment data is entered below in the Enrollment Section beginning in row 155. This will populate the data in row 10. 

REGULAR 
EDUCATION 

SPECIAL 
EDUCATION OTHER FUNDRAISING MANAGEMENT & 

GENERAL 
Total Revenue 8,139,958 637,029 - - 100 

Total Expenses 6,401,818 1,028,292 - 168,472 1,104,419 
Net Income 1,738,140 (391,262) - (168,472) (1,104,319) 

Actual Student Enrollment 428 47 
Total Paid Student Enrollment - -

TOTAL 

8,777,087 
8,703,000 

74,087 
-
-

PROGRAM SERVICES SUPPORT SERVICES 

REGULAR 
EDUCATION 

SPECIAL 
EDUCATION OTHER FUNDRAISING 

MANAGEMENT & 
GENERAL TOTAL 

CFO / Director of Finance 1.00 4,500 4,500 4,500 76,500 
Operation / Business Manager 6.00 42,290 42,290 61,550 276,770 
Administrative Staff 2.00 41,160 16,464 - 24,696 

TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF 18 597,514 203,250 91,650 557,166 

INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL COSTS 
Teachers - Regular 21.00 1,462,970 180,471 - -
Teachers - SPED 5.00 361,354 44,577 - -
Substitute Teachers - - - - -
Teaching Assistants - - - - -
Specialty Teachers 8.00 573,954 70,803 - -
Aides - - - - -
Therapists & Counselors 3.00 206,735 25,503 - -
Other - 131,744 16,252 - -

TOTAL INSTRUCTIONAL 37 2,736,758 337,605 

NON-INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL COSTS 
Nurse - - - - - -
Librarian - - - - - -
Custodian - - - - - -
Security 1.00 22,050 8,820 - - 13,230 
Other - - - - - -

TOTAL NON-INSTRUCTIONAL 1 22,050 8,820 13,230 

SUBTOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE COSTS 56 3,356,322 549,675 91,650 570,396 

PAYROLL TAXES AND BENEFITS 
Payroll Taxes 297,024 48,645 - 8,111 50,478 
Fringe / Employee Benefits 316,126 51,773 - 8,632 53,725 
Retirement / Pension 80,566 13,195 - 2,200 13,692 

TOTAL PAYROLL TAXES AND BENEFITS 693,717 113,612 18,943 117,895 

TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE COSTS 4,050,039 663,287 110,593 688,291 

CONTRACTED SERVICES 
Accounting / Audit - - - - 100,000 
Legal 63,188 10,348 - 1,725 10,739 
Management Company Fee - - - - -
Nurse Services - - - - -
Food Service / School Lunch - - - - -
Payroll Services - - - - 7,188 
Special Ed Services - - - - -
Titlement Services (i.e. Title I) - - - - -
Other Purchased / Professional / Consulting 23,590 2,910 - - -

TOTAL CONTRACTED SERVICES 86,778 13,258 1,725 117,927 

SCHOOL OPERATIONS 

90,000 
422,900 

82,320 
1,449,580 

1,643,441 
405,931 

-
-

644,757 
-

232,238 
147,996 

3,074,363 

-
-
-

44,100 
-

44,100 

4,568,043 

404,258 
430,256 
109,653 
944,167 

5,512,210 

100,000 
86,000 

-
-
-

7,188 
-
-

26,500 
219,688 
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The Charter High School for Law & Social Justice 

Board Expenses - - - - 1,000 1,000 
Classroom / Teaching Supplies & Materials 99,632 13,953 - - - 113,585 
Special Ed Supplies & Materials - - - - - -
Textbooks / Workbooks 31,443 3,879 - - - 35,322 
Supplies & Materials other - - - - - -
Equipment / Furniture 40,416 6,259 - 861 5,356 52,892 
Telephone 9,686 1,586 - 264 1,646 13,183 
Technology 79,782 13,066 - 2,179 13,559 108,586 
Student Testing & Assessment 7,055 870 - - - 7,925 
Field Trips 48,960 6,040 - - - 55,000 
Transportation (student) 13,353 1,647 - - - 15,000 
Student Services - other 127,868 15,774 - - - 143,642 
Office Expense 42,820 7,013 - 1,169 7,277 58,279 
Staff Development 163,864 20,214 - - - 184,078 
Staff Recruitment 33,063 5,415 - 903 5,619 45,000 
Student Recruitment / Marketing 7,390 1,030 - 80 499 9,000 
School Meals / Lunch 8,902 1,098 - - - 10,000 
Travel (Staff) 1,469 241 - 40 250 2,000 
Fundraising - - - 8,400 - 8,400 
Other 21,398 3,432 - 536 3,334 28,700 

TOTAL SCHOOL OPERATIONS 737,103 101,518 14,432 38,540 891,592 

FACILITY OPERATION & MAINTENANCE 
Insurance 47,538 7,785 - 1,298 8,079 64,700 
Janitorial 93,312 15,282 - 2,548 15,858 127,000 
Building and Land Rent / Lease 1,137,170 186,238 - 31,052 193,258 1,547,718 
Repairs & Maintenance 47,207 7,731 - 1,289 8,023 64,250 
Equipment / Furniture - - - - - -
Security - - - - - -
Utilities - - - - - -

TOTAL FACILITY OPERATION & MAINTENANCE 1,325,226 217,036 36,188 225,218 1,803,668 

DEPRECIATION & AMORTIZATION 202,672 33,192 - 5,534 34,443 275,842 
DISSOLUTION ESCROW & RESERVES / CONTIGENCY - - - - - -

TOTAL EXPENSES 6,401,818 1,028,292 168,472 1,104,419 8,703,000 

NET INCOME 1,738,140 (391,262) - (168,472) (1,104,319) 74,087 

ENROLLMENT - *School Districts Are Linked To Above Entries* REGULAR 
EDUCATION 

SPECIAL 
EDUCATION 

TOTAL 
ENROLLED 

District of Location 421 47 468 
School District 2 (Enter Name) 5 5 
School District 3 (Enter Name) 2 2 
School District 4 (Enter Name) -
School District 5 (Enter Name) -

PROJECTED BUDGET FOR 2018-2019 

July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2019 
Please Note: The student enrollment data is entered below in the Enrollment Section beginning in row 155. This will populate the data in row 10. 

REGULAR 
EDUCATION 

SPECIAL 
EDUCATION OTHER FUNDRAISING MANAGEMENT & 

GENERAL TOTAL 

Total Revenue 8,139,958 637,029 - - 100 8,777,087 
Total Expenses 6,401,818 1,028,292 - 168,472 1,104,419 8,703,000 

Net Income 1,738,140 (391,262) - (168,472) (1,104,319) 74,087 
Actual Student Enrollment 428 47 -

Total Paid Student Enrollment - - -

PROGRAM SERVICES SUPPORT SERVICES 

REGULAR 
EDUCATION 

SPECIAL 
EDUCATION OTHER FUNDRAISING 

MANAGEMENT & 
GENERAL TOTAL 



 

  

  

        
   

      
                        

 

 
 

 
  

   

  

 

The Charter High School for Law & Social Justice 

TOTAL ENROLLMENT 428 47 475 

REVENUE PER PUPIL 19,019 13,554 -

EXPENSES PER PUPIL 14,958 21,879 -

PROJECTED BUDGET FOR 2018-2019 

July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2019 
Please Note: The student enrollment data is entered below in the Enrollment Section beginning in row 155. This will populate the data in row 10. 

REGULAR 
EDUCATION 

SPECIAL 
EDUCATION OTHER FUNDRAISING MANAGEMENT & 

GENERAL TOTAL 

Total Revenue 8,139,958 637,029 - - 100 8,777,087 
Total Expenses 6,401,818 1,028,292 - 168,472 1,104,419 8,703,000 

Net Income 1,738,140 (391,262) - (168,472) (1,104,319) 74,087 
Actual Student Enrollment 428 47 -

Total Paid Student Enrollment - - -

PROGRAM SERVICES SUPPORT SERVICES 

REGULAR 
EDUCATION 

SPECIAL 
EDUCATION OTHER FUNDRAISING 

MANAGEMENT & 
GENERAL TOTAL 



 

        

         

Assumptions 

DESCRIPTION OF ASSUMPTIONS - Please note assumptions when applicable 

List exact titles and staff FTE"s ( Full time eqiuilivalent) 



 

        

Assumptions 

DESCRIPTION OF ASSUMPTIONS - Please note assumptions when applicable 



 

        

Assumptions 

DESCRIPTION OF ASSUMPTIONS - Please note assumptions when applicable 



 

        

Assumptions 

DESCRIPTION OF ASSUMPTIONS - Please note assumptions when applicable 
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The Charter High School for Law and Social Justice
 
Board of Directors Meeting Minutes
 

July 19, 2017, 7:00pm
 
The Charter High School for Law and Social Justice
 

1960 University Avenue
 
Bronx, NY 10453
 

Present: Janine Azriliant, Jack Callahan, Dr. Charles Flynn, Jenn LaMarsh, Rick Marsico, 

Absent: Larry Grosberg, Katie Smelas, Linnet Tse 

1. Welcome and Call to Order 

2. Consent Agenda (Items on the Consent Agenda are automatically approved unless a 
Board member removes an item from the consent agenda. In that event, the item will be 
removed from the Consent Agenda and subject to Board approval by majority vote.) 

A.	 Approval of the amended Minutes of the Board of Trustees meetings of June 21, 
2017, and June 28, 2017(Exhibits 1 and 2) 

3.	 Financial Report (Exhibits 5 and 6) 

Charter School Business Management provided an update. 

4.	 Principal’s Report 

Sean Harrell provided an update. 

5. Chair’s Report 

Rick Marsico provided an update. Arthur Mockabee provided an update on 
Facilities. 

6. Committee Reports 

Fundraising Committee: Rick Marsico provided an update. 

There were no reports from other Committees this month. 

7.	 New Business 

No new business. 

8.	 Statements from Members of the Public 

No member of the public signed up to speak. 



 
  

 
     

 
 

      
     

     
 

 
     

 
 

       
   

 
 

     
 

  
  

   
 

     
 

 
   

 
 
 

   
 

 
 

 
    

 
   

    
 

9. Executive Session 

On motion by Jack Callahan and second by Jenn LaMarsh, the Board unanimously 
voted to go into executive session. 

It is hereby RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of The Charter High School for 
Law and Social Justice that the Board adjourn from Public Session to Executive 
Session to discuss the employment history of particular individuals and 
collective bargaining. 

On motion by Janine Azriliant and second by Jack Callahan, the Board unanimously 
voted to return to public session. 

It is hereby RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of The Charter High School for 
Law and Social Justice that the Board adjourn the Executive Session and return 
to Public Session. 

On motion by Jack Callahan and second by Janine Azriliant, the Board adopted the 
following resolution by unanimous vote: 

It is hereby RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of The Charter High School for 
Law and Social Justice that Elishia Hinton be offered the position of Assistant 
Principal for Curriculum and Instruction at a salary to be based on the current 
salary matrix and finalized by the Finance Committee. 

On motion by Jenn LaMarsh and second by Charles Flynn, the Board adopted the 
following resolution by unanimous vote: 

It is hereby RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of The Charter High School for 
Law and Social Justice that Courtney Crawford continue to serve as the 
Assistant Principal at a salary to be based on the current salary matrix and 
finalized by the Finance Committee. 

10. Next Meeting 

The next Board meeting will be held on August 19, 2017, at 7:00pm at The Charter 
High School for Law and Social Justice. 

11. Adjournment 

Upon motion by Charles Flynn and second by Jenn LaMarsh, the Board of Trustees of 
The Charter High School for Law and Social Justice unanimously voted to adjourn 
the meeting. 



 
 



  
 

 
  

 
 

 
    

 
 

    
 

    
 

  

 
 

  
   
   

 
   

 
 

 
   

 
  

 
  

 
  

 
 

 
   

 
  

 
 
  
 

   
 
   

The Charter High School for Law and Social Justice
 
Board of Directors Meeting Minutes
 

August 16, 2017, 7:00pm
 
The Charter High School for Law and Social Justice
 

1960 University Avenue
 
Bronx, NY 10453
 

Present: Jack Callahan, Dr. Charles Flynn, Larry Grosberg, Jenn LaMarsh, Rick Marsico, Katie 
Smelas 

Absent: Janine Azriliant, Linnet Tse (telephone) 

1. Welcome and Call to Order 

2. Consent Agenda (Items on the Consent Agenda are automatically approved unless a 
Board member removes an item from the consent agenda. In that event, the item will be 
removed from the Consent Agenda and subject to Board approval by majority vote.) 

A. Offer of Employment to Daisy Rosa as an English Teacher (Exhibits 2 and 3) 
B. Offer of Employment to Jason Walcott as an English Teacher (Exhibits 4 and 5) 
C. Offer of Employment to Adam Davis as a Security Guard (Exhibits 6 and 7) 

3.	 Financial Report (Exhibit 8) 

Charter School Business Management provided an update. 

4.	 Principal’s Report 

Sean Harrell provided an update. 

5. 	Chair’s Report 

Rick Marsico provided an update. 

6. Committee Reports 

Audit Committee: Heather Blumberg provided an update. 

Finance Committee: Rick Marsico provided an update. 

There were no reports from other Committees this month. 

7.	 New Business 

No new business. 



 
 

   
 
  
 

  
 

     
 

 
      

     
     

 
 

      
 

 
       

   
 

 
   

 
 

  
 

    
 

     

    
 
 

8.	 Statements from Members of the Public 

No member of the public signed up to speak. 

9. Executive Session 

On motion by Katie Smelas and second by Jack Callahan, the Board unanimously 
voted to go into executive session. 

It is hereby RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of The Charter High School for 
Law and Social Justice that the Board adjourn from Public Session to Executive 
Session to discuss the employment history of particular individuals and 
collective bargaining. 

On motion by Jack Callahan and second by Jenn LaMarsh, the Board unanimously 
voted to return to public session. 

It is hereby RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of The Charter High School for 
Law and Social Justice that the Board adjourn the Executive Session and return 
to Public Session. 

10. Next Meeting 

The next Board meeting will be held on September 20, 2017, at 7:00pm at The 
Charter High School for Law and Social Justice. 

11. Adjournment 

Upon motion by Katie Smelas and second by Larry Grosberg, the Board of Trustees 
of The Charter High School for Law and Social Justice unanimously voted to adjourn 
the meeting. 



  
 

  
  

 
 

 
     

 
    

 
    

 
  

 
 

 
   

  
  
   

 
   
  
    

 
  

 
   

     
 

 

 
 

 
   

     
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

The Charter High School for Law and Social Justice
 
Board of Directors Meeting Minutes
 

September 27, 2017, 7:00pm
 
The Charter High School for Law and Social Justice
 

1960 University Avenue
 
Bronx, NY 10453
 

Present: Janine Azriliant, Jack Callahan, Larry Grosberg, Jenn LaMarsh, Rick Marsico 

Absent: Dr. Charles Flynn, Katie Smelas, Linnet Tse 

1. Welcome and Call to Order 

2. Consent Agenda (Items on the Consent Agenda are automatically approved unless a 
Board member removes an item from the consent agenda. In that event, the item will be 
removed from the Consent Agenda and subject to Board approval by majority vote.) 

A.	 Approval of the Minutes of the Board of Trustees meeting of August 16, 2017
 
(Exhibit 1) – Removed.
 

B.	 Approval of PowerTools Teacher Effectiveness Proposal (Exhibit 2) 
C.	 Approval of Head Heart Hands Consulting LLC – Teacher Effectiveness Proposal 

(Exhibit 3) 
D.	 Offer of Employment to Rayon Archer as a Grade-Level Advisor (Exhibits 4 and 5) 
E.	 Offer of Employment to Rany Hosny as a Math Teacher (Exhibits 6 and 7) 
F.	 Offer of Employment to Aime Mabelo as a World Language Teacher (Exhibits 8 and 

9) 
G.	 Offer of Employment to Mason Branch as an Art Teacher (Exhibits 10 and 11) 

On motion by Janine Azriliant and second by Larry Grosberg, the Board adopted the 
following resolution by unanimous vote: 

It is hereby RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of The Charter High School for 
Law and Social Justice (the “School”) that the !greements in Exhibits 2 and 3 
are approved, subject to review and approval by the School’s attorney and the 
Board Chair. 

On motion by Jack Callahan and second by Janine Azriliant, the Board adopted the 
following resolution by unanimous vote: 

It is hereby RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of The Charter High School for 
Law and Social Justice (the “School”) that the Settlement !greement between 
the School and UFT, Local 2, AFT, AFL-CIO is approved for execution. It is 
further resolved that the Board authorizes the Board Chair to accept or make 
changes to the agreement as he deems necessary and/or appropriate prior to 
execution. 



 
 

   
 

 
 

   
 

  
 

  
 

  
 

 
 
  
 

   
 
   
 
 

   
 
  
 

  
 

      
 

 
      

     
     

 
 

      
 

 
       

   
 

 
  

3.	 Financial Report (Exhibit 12) 

Charter School Business Management provided an update. 

4.	 Principal’s Report 

Sean Harrell provided an update. 

5. 	Chair’s Report 

Rick Marsico provided an update. 

6. Committee Reports 

There were no Committee reports this month. 

7.	 New Business 

No new business. 

8.	 Statements from Members of the Public 

No member of the public signed up to speak. 

9. Executive Session 

On motion by Janine Azriliant and second by Jenn LaMarsh, the Board unanimously 
voted to go into executive session. 

It is hereby RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of The Charter High School for 
Law and Social Justice that the Board adjourn from Public Session to Executive 
Session to discuss the employment of particular individuals, litigation, and 
collective bargaining. 

On motion by Jenn LaMarsh and second by Jack Callahan, the Board unanimously 
voted to return to public session. 

It is hereby RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of The Charter High School for 
Law and Social Justice that the Board adjourn the Executive Session and return 
to Public Session. 



   
 

 
  

 
    

 
     

    
 
 
 

10. Next Meeting 

The next Board meeting will be held on October 18, 2017, at 7:00pm at The Charter 
High School for Law and Social Justice. 

11. Adjournment 

Upon motion by Larry Grosberg and second by Rick Marisco, the Board of Trustees 
of The Charter High School for Law and Social Justice unanimously voted to adjourn 
the meeting. 



  
 

 
  

 
 

 
     

 
   

 
    

 
  

 
 

 
  

 
   

   
  

 
    

 
     

   
     

 
  

   
     

 
 

 

 
 

   
 

 
 

   
 

   

The Charter High School for Law and Social Justice
 
Board of Directors Meeting Minutes
 

October 18, 2017, 7:15pm
 
The Charter High School for Law and Social Justice
 

1960 University Avenue
 
Bronx, NY 10453
 

Present: Janine Azriliant, Jack Callahan, Rick Marsico, Katie Smelas, Linnet Tse 

Absent: Dr. Charles Flynn, Larry Grosberg, Jenn LaMarsh, 

1. Welcome and Call to Order 

2. Consent Agenda (Items on the Consent Agenda are automatically approved unless a 
Board member removes an item from the consent agenda. In that event, the item will be 
removed from the Consent Agenda and subject to Board approval by majority vote.) 

A.	 Approval of PowerTools Teacher Effectiveness Proposal (Exhibit 1). – Removed 
from Consent Agenda. 

B.	 Approval of Head Heart Hands Consulting LLC – Teacher Effectiveness Proposal 
(Exhibit 2) – Removed from Consent Agenda. 

C.	 Approval of Charter School Incubator Memorandum of Understanding (Exhibit 3) – 
Removed from Consent Agenda. 

D.	 Amendment to Offer of Employment to Courtney Crawford as Acting Principal 
(Exhibits 4 and 5) 

E.	 Offer of Employment to John Hemingway as a Grade-Level Advisor (Exhibits 6 and 
7) – Removed from Consent Agenda. 

F.	 Offer of Employment to Angela Phillips as a Yoga/Movement Teacher (Exhibit 8) – 
Removed from Consent Agenda. 

On motion by Katie Smelas and second by Jack Callahan, the Board adopted the 
following resolution by unanimous vote: 

It is hereby RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of The Charter High School for 
Law and Social Justice (the “Board”) that the Board delegates authority to the 
Board Chair to approve and sign Exhibits 1, 2, 3, and 8, provided there are no 
substantial changes subject to the Board Chair’s judgment as to whether they 
should be returned for further review. 

3. Financial Report (Exhibit 12) 

Charter School Business Management provided an update. 

4. Principal’s Report 

Courtney Crawford provided an update in Executive Session. 



 
  

 
  

 
 

 
  

 
 

   
     

 
 

 
 
  
 

   
 
   
 

    
 
  
 

  
 

    
 

 
      

     
      

 
 

      
 

 
       

   
 

 
  

5. 	Chair’s Report 

Rick Marsico provided an update. 

6. Committee Reports 

Audit Committee: Heather Blumberg and Jeanine Taylor from CSBM provided an 
update. 

On motion by Jack Callahan and second by Janine Azriliant, the Board adopted the 
following resolution by unanimous vote: 

It is hereby RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of The Charter High School for 
Law and Social Justice accepts the 2016-2017 audited financial statements 
provided by Mengel, Metzger, and Barr. 

There were no reports from other Committees this month. 

7.	 New Business 

No new business. 

8.	 Statements from Members of the Public 

No member of the public signed up to speak. 

9. Executive Session 

On motion by Katie Smelas and second by Janine Azriliant, the Board unanimously 
voted to go into executive session. 

It is hereby RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of The Charter High School for 
Law and Social Justice that the Board adjourn from Public Session to Executive 
Session to discuss the employment of particular individuals and collective 
bargaining. 

On motion by Jack Callahan and second by Katie Smelas, the Board unanimously 
voted to return to public session. 

It is hereby RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of The Charter High School for 
Law and Social Justice that the Board adjourn the Executive Session and return 
to Public Session. 



   
 

 
  

 
    

 
    

    
 
 
 
 

10. Next Meeting 

The next Board meeting will be held on November 15, 2017, at 7:00pm at The 
Charter High School for Law and Social Justice. 

11. Adjournment 

Upon motion by Janine Azriliant and second by Jack Callahan, the Board of Trustees 
of The Charter High School for Law and Social Justice unanimously voted to adjourn 
the meeting. 



  
 

 
  

 
 

 
   

 
    

 
    

 
  

 
 

 
    

 
   
  

  
   
   
  

 
  

    
 

 
 

    
 
   
 

    
 

  
 

   
 

  
  

The Charter High School for Law and Social Justice
 
Board of Directors Meeting Minutes
 

November 15, 2017, 7:00pm
 
The Charter High School for Law and Social Justice
 

1960 University Avenue
 
Bronx, NY 10453
 

Present: Janine Azriliant, Jack Callahan, Rick Marsico, Larry Grossberg, Linnet Tse 

Absent: Dr. Charles Flynn, Katie Smelas, Jenn LaMarsh, 

1. Welcome and Call to Order 

2. Consent Agenda (Items on the Consent Agenda are automatically approved unless a 
Board member removes an item from the consent agenda. In that event, the item will be 
removed from the Consent Agenda and subject to Board approval by majority vote.) 

A.	 Approval of the Minutes of the Board of Trustees meetings of September 27, 2017 
and October 18, 2017 (Exhibits 1 and 2) 

B.	 Approval of PowerTools Independent Contractor Agreement (Exhibit 3) 
C.	 Approval of Head Heart Hands Consulting LLC Independent Contractor Agreement 

(Exhibit 4) 
D.	 Approval of Services Agreement with Great Schools Choices, Inc (Exhibit 5) 
E.	 Approval of Tall Builders LLC Agreement (Exhibit 6) 
F.	 Offer of Employment to Angela Phillips as Yoga/Movement Teacher (Exhibits 7 and 

8) 

3. Financial Report (Exhibit 9) 

Charter School Business Management provided an update. 

4. Approval of ADP Compensation and Fee Disclosure Statement (Exhibits 10 and 11) 

Linnet Tse provided an overview. 

On Motion by Larry Grossberg and second by Jack Callahan, the Board adopted the 
following resolution by unanimous vote: 

It is hereby RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of The Charter High School for Law 
and Social Justice that the ADP Compensation and Fee Disclosure Statement, 
attached as Exhibits 11 is approved. 

5. Approval of Charter Revision Request (Exhibit 12) 

On Motion by Jack Callahan and second by Janine Azriliant, the Board adopted the following 
resolution by unanimous vote: 



  
 

  
 

   
 

  
  
    
 

  
 
   
 

  
 
   
 

  
 
   
 

   
 

  
 

      
     

  
 

      
     

  
      

   

 
     

 
 

       
   

 

It is hereby RESOVLED by the Board of Trustees of The Charter High School for Law 
and Social Justice that the material Charter Revision Request will be submitted to the 
Board of Regents of the University of the State of New York (“Board of Regents”). 

6. Principal’s Report 

Courtney Crawford provided an update. 

7. President’s Report 

Rick Marsico provided an update. 

8. Committee Reports 

There were no committee reports this month. 

9. New Business 

No new business. 

10. Statements from Members of the Public 

No member of the public signed up to speak. 

11. Executive Session 

On motion by Jack Callahan and second by Linnet Tse, the Board unanimously voted to go 
into Executive Session. 

It is hereby RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of The Charter High School for 
Law and Social Justice that the Board adjourn from Public Session to Executive 
Session to discuss the employment of particular individuals. 

It is hereby RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of The Charter High School for 
Law and Social Justice that retroactive to September 1, 2017, Veronica 
Polanco's salary is increased by $5,000.00 per year, John Hemingway's salary is 
increased by $14,000.00 per year, and that William Hargett shall receive a 
monthly stipend of $2,000.00 in addition to his current salary. 

On motion by Jack Callaham and second by Linnet Tse, the Board unanimously voted to 
return to public session. 

It is hereby RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of The Charter High School for 
Law and Social Justice that the Board adjourn the Executive Session and return 
to Public Session. 

http:2,000.00
http:14,000.00
http:5,000.00


 
  

 
  

 
  

   

    
 
 
 
 

12. Next Meeting 
The next Board Meeting will be held on Wednesday, December 13, 2017 at 7:00pm 

at The Charter High School for Law and Social Justice. 

13. Adjournment 
Upon motion by Jack Callahan and second by Rick Marisco, the Board of Trustees of 
The Charter High School for Law and Social Justice unanimously voted to adjourn 
the meeting. 



  

  
 

 
  

 
 

 
     

 
 

   
 

    
 

  
 

 
 

    
 

   
 

   
  
    
 

   
 

  
 

   
 

   
     

 
 

 
  

 
   

 
   

     
 

Exhibit 1 to April 17, 2018 

The Charter High School for Law and Social Justice
 
Board of Directors Meeting Minutes
 

February 1, 2018, 7:00pm
 
The Charter High School for Law and Social Justice
 

1960 University Avenue
 
Bronx, NY 10453
 

Present: Janine Azriliant, Jack Callahan, Larry Grosberg, Jenn LaMarsh, Rick Marsico, Katie 
Smelas 

Absent: Dr. Charles Flynn, Linnet Tse 

1. Welcome and Call to Order 

2. Consent Agenda (Items on the Consent Agenda are automatically approved unless a 
Board member removes an item from the consent agenda. In that event, the item will be 
removed from the Consent Agenda and subject to Board approval by majority vote.) 

A.	 Approval of the Minutes of the Board of Trustees meeting of November 15, 2017 
(Exhibit 1). 

B.	 Approval of Stipend for Rayon Archer (Exhibit 2). 

3.	 Regents Data Analysis 

Report provided and presented by Chole Muller and Elishia Hinton. 

4.	 Financial Report (Exhibit 3) 

Rick Marsico provided an update. 

5. Approval of Form 990 for FY 16-17 (Exhibit 4) 

On motion by Jenn LaMarsh and second by Jack Callahan, the Board adopted the 
following resolution by unanimous vote: 

It is hereby RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of The Charter High School for 
Law and Social Justice (the “Board”) that the Board approves Form 990 for FY 
16-17, as attached in Exhibit 4. 

6. Approval of Work Authorization for Additional Services (Exhibit 5) 

On motion by Katie Smelas and second by Jack Callahan, the Board adopted the 
following resolution by unanimous vote: 



  

 
 

 
 

   
 

   
     

 
 

 
 

   
 
  
 

   
 

  
 

  
 

  
 

   
 

   
     

 
 

 
 

  
 
   
 

    
 
   
 

   
 
  
 

Exhibit 1 to April 17, 2018 

It is hereby RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of The Charter High School for 
Law and Social Justice (the “Board”) that the Board approves the Work 
Authorization for Additional Services, attached as Exhibit 5. 

7. !pproval of Employer’s !pplication for Voluntary Coverage (Exhibit 6) 

On motion by Jenn LaMarsh and second by Katie Smelas, the Board adopted the 
following resolution by unanimous vote: 

It is hereby RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of The Charter High School for 
Law and Social Justice (the “Board”) that the Board approves the Employer’s 
Application for Voluntary Coverage, attached as Exhibit 6. 

8.	 Approval of Retainer Agreement with Seyfarth Shaw (Exhibit 7) 

WITHDRAWN 

9.	 Principal’s Report 

Courtney Crawford provided an update. 

10. 	Chair’s Report 

Rick Marsico provided an update. 

11. Committee Appointment 

On motion by Janine Azriliant and second by Katie Smelas, the Board adopted the 
following resolution by unanimous vote: 

It is hereby RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of The Charter High School for 
Law and Social Justice (the “Board”) that the Board appoints Dr. Lynne 
Bongiovanni, Ph.D., as a member of the Educational Accountability Committee. 

12. 	Committee Reports 

There were no Committee reports this month. 

13.	 New Business 

No new business. 

14.	 Statements from Members of the Public 

No member of the public signed up to speak. 



  

   
 

     
 

 
      

     
      

 
 

    
 

 
       

   
 

 
   

 
 

 
 

    
 

    

    
 
 
 
 
 

Exhibit 1 to April 17, 2018 

15. Executive Session 

On motion by Jack Callahan and second by Jenn LaMarsh, the Board unanimously 
voted to go into executive session. 

It is hereby RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of The Charter High School for 
Law and Social Justice that the Board adjourn from Public Session to Executive 
Session to discuss the employment of particular individuals and collective 
bargaining. 

On motion by Katie Smelas and second by Janine Azriliant, the Board unanimously 
voted to return to public session. 

It is hereby RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of The Charter High School for 
Law and Social Justice that the Board adjourn the Executive Session and return 
to Public Session. 

16. Next Meeting 

The next Board meeting will be held on February 13, 2018, at 7:00pm at The Charter 
High School for Law and Social Justice. 

17. Adjournment 

Upon motion by Jack Callahan and second by Jenn LaMarsh, the Board of Trustees of 
The Charter High School for Law and Social Justice unanimously voted to adjourn 
the meeting. 



 

  
 

 
  

 
 

 
  

 
 

  
 

    
 

   
 

    
 

 
       

    
  

 
    

 
 

        
       

 
 
   

 
   

     
 

  

    
 

   
 

   
   

 

Exhibit 3 to April 17, 2018 

The Charter High School for Law and Social Justice
 
Board of Directors Meeting Minutes
 

April 3, 2018, 7:00pm
 
The Charter High School for Law and Social Justice
 

1960 University Avenue
 
Bronx, NY 10453
 

Present: Janine Azriliant, Jack Callahan, Dr. Charles Flynn, Larry Grosberg, Rick Marsico, 

Katie Smelas, Linnet Tse
 

Absent: Jenn LaMarsh 

1. Welcome and Call to Order 

2. Executive Session 

On motion by Linnet Tse and second by Jack Callahan, the Board unanimously 
voted to go into executive session. 

It is hereby RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of The Charter High School for 
Law and Social Justice that the Board adjourn from Public Session to Executive 
Session to discuss the employment of a particular individual. 

On motion by Katie Smelas and second by Jack Callahan, the Board unanimously 
voted to return to public session. 

It is hereby RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of The Charter High School for 
Law and Social Justice that the Board adjourn the Executive Session and return 
to Public Session. 

3. Approval of Employment Contract 

On motion by Katie Smelas and second by Linnet Tse, the Board adopted the 
following resolution by unanimous vote: 

It is hereby RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of The Charter High School 
for Law and Social Justice (the “Board”) that the Board approve the 
Employment Contract for Courtney Crawford, attached as Exhibit 1. 

4. Approval of Salary Table 

On motion by Jack Callahan and second by Charles Flynn, the Board adopted the 
following resolution by unanimous vote:  



 

  

    
 

    
 

  
 

 
    

 
     

    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Exhibit 3 to April 17, 2018 

It is hereby RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of The Charter High School 
for Law and Social Justice (the “Board”) that the Board approve the salary 
proposals attached as Exhibit 2. 

4. Next Meeting 

The next Board meeting will be held on April 17, 2018, at 7:00pm at The Charter 
High School for Law and Social Justice. 

5. Adjournment 

Upon motion by Katie Smelas and second by Jack Callahan, the Board of Trustees of 
The Charter High School for Law and Social Justice unanimously voted to adjourn 
the meeting. 



 

  
 

  
  

 
 

 
    

 
   

 
  

  
 

    
 

  

 
 

      
  

 
 

  
 

 
   

 
 

    
 

 

   
 

    
 
  
 

   
 

   
 
 
 

Exhibit 1 to May 16, 2018 

The Charter High School for Law and Social Justice
 
Board of Directors Meeting Minutes
 

April 17, 2018, 7:00 pm
 
The Charter High School for Law and Social Justice
 

1960 University Avenue
 
Bronx, NY 10453
 

Present: Janine Azriliant, Jack Callahan, Larry Grosberg, Rick Marsico, and Linnet Tse 

Absent: Dr. Charles Flynn, Jenn LaMarsh, and Katie Smelas 

Staff and Consultants: Courtney Crawford, William Hargett, Gary Knight, Arthur Mockabee, 
and Jeanine Taylor 

1. Welcome and Call to Order 

2. Consent Agenda (Items on the Consent Agenda are automatically approved unless a 
Board member removes an item from the consent agenda. In that event, the item will be 
subject to Board approval by majority vote.) 

A.	 Approval of the Minutes of the Board of Trustees meetings of February 1, 2018, 
March 1, 2018, and April 3, 2018 (Exhibits 1, 2, and 3) 

B.	 Offer of Employment to Joseph Certa as Summer Bridge Legal Instructor (Exhibits 4 
and 5) 

C.	 Offer of Employment to Shannon Betancourt as Summer Bridge Legal Instructor 
(Exhibits 6 and7) 

3. Resolution for Metal Detectors (Exhibit 8) 

On motion by Jack Callahan and second by Larry Grosberg, the Board adopted the 
following resolution by unanimous vote: 

It is hereby RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of The Charter High School for 
Law and Social Justice (the “Board”) that the Board approve the Resolution 
attached as Exhibit 8. 

4. Resolution to Elect a New Board Member 

WITHDRAWN 

5. Financial Report (Exhibit 9) 

Jeanine Taylor provided an update. 



 

   
 

  
 

   
 

   
 

  
 
   
 

   
 
   
 

   
 
  
 

   
 

     
 

 
       

     
      

  
 

       
   

 
 

      
      

 
 

    
 

 
 

   
 

   
 

Exhibit 1 to May 16, 2018 

6. 	Principal’s Report and Dashboard 

Courtney Crawford and Arthur Mockabee provided an update. 

7.	 President’s Report 

Rick Marsico provided an update. 

8. 	Committee Reports 

There were no Committee reports this month. 

9.	 New Business 

No new business. 

10.	 Statements from Members of the Public 

No member of the public signed up to speak. 

11. Executive Session 

On motion by Janine Azriliant and second by Jack Callahan, the Board unanimously 
voted to go into executive session. 

It is hereby RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of The Charter High School for 
Law and Social Justice that the Board adjourn from Public Session to Executive 
Session to discuss the employment of particular individuals and to discuss the 
resolution of potential litigation. 

It is hereby RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of The Charter High School for 
Law and Social Justice that the Board adjourn the Executive Session and return 
to Public Session. 

It is hereby RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of The Charter High School for 
Law and Social Justice that the release and letter regarding a former employee 
is approved. 

On motion by Linnet Tse and second by Jack Callahan, the Board unanimously voted 
to return to public session. 

12. Next Meeting 

The next Board meeting will be held on May 15, 2018, at 7:00 pm at The Charter 
High School for Law and Social Justice. 



 

 
    

 
    

    
 
 
 
 
 

Exhibit 1 to May 16, 2018 

13. Adjournment 

Upon motion by Jack Callahan and second by Linnet Tse, the Board of Trustees of 
The Charter High School for Law and Social Justice unanimously voted to adjourn 
the meeting. 









 

  
 

 
  

 
 

 
    

  
 

  
 

    
 

  

 
 

  
 

   
 

   
  

   
    

  
   

  
   
  

  
  

   
 

  
 

  
 

 
   
    

  
 

   

Exhibit 1 to July 26, 2018 

The Charter High School for Law and Social Justice
 
Board of Directors Meeting Minutes
 

June 20, 2018, 7:00pm
 
The Charter High School for Law and Social Justice
 

1960 University Avenue
 
Bronx, NY 10453
 

Present: Janine Azriliant, Jack Callahan, Larry Grosberg, Jenn LaMarsh Rick Marsico, Katie 
Smelas, Linnet Tse 

Absent: Dr. Charles Flynn 

1. Welcome and Call to Order 

2. Consent Agenda (Items on the Consent Agenda are automatically approved unless a 
Board member removes an item from the consent agenda. In that event, the item will be 
removed from the Consent Agenda and subject to Board approval by majority vote.) 

A.	 Approval of the Minutes of the Board of Trustees meeting of May 15, 2018 (Exhibit 
1). 

B.	 Approval of PowerTools Advisory and Leadership Development Proposal (Exhibit 
2). 

a.	 Removed from Consent Agenda. 
C.	 Approval of Head Heart Hands LLC Proposal (Exhibit 3). 

a.	 Removed from Consent Agenda. 
D.	 Approval of Charter Technology Solutions Proposals (Exhibits 4 and 5). 

a.	 Removed from Consent Agenda. 
E.	 Approval of Shield Cleaning Services Proposal (Exhibit 6). 

a.	 Removed from Consent Agenda. 
F.	 Approval of the 2018-2019 School Calendar (Exhibit 7). 
G.	 Approval of Academy Furniture and Supplies Proposal (Exhibit 8). 

a.	 Removed from Consent Agenda. 
H.	 Approval of the 2018-2019 Board Meeting Dates (Exhibit 9). 
I.	 Offer of Stipend Agreement to Tanesha Brown as 11th Grade Guidance Counselor 

(Exhibit 10). 
J.	 Offer of Employment to Keziah Gonzales as Executive Assistant (Exhibits 11 and 

12). 
K.	 Offer of Employment to William Hargett as Chief of Staff/Board Liaison (Exhibit 13) 
– this offer letter replaces the contract the Board approved at its meeting on May 
15, 2018. 

L.	 Offer of Employment to James Linehan as ICT History Teacher (Exhibits 14 and 15). 
M. Offer of Employment to Gary Knight as Director of Finance and Human Resources 

(Exhibit 16) - this offer letter replaces the contract the Board approved at its 
meeting on May 15, 2018. 

N.	 Offer of Employment to Shonnell Mack as Dean of Students (Exhibits 17 and 18). 



 

   
 

  
 

   
 

    
    

 

     
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

    
  
  
 

    
 

 
 

  
     

 
  

 
 

 
    

 
   

     
 

  
 

 
 

Exhibit 1 to July 26, 2018 

O.	 Offer of Employment to Alexandra Ramirez as Guidance Counselor (Exhibits 19 and 
20). 

P.	 Offer of Employment to Kimberlee Rodriguez as Academic Operations Associate 
(Exhibits 21 and 22). 

Q.	 Offer of Employment to Jahshae Stewart as Operations Manager (Exhibits 23 and 
24). 

R.	 Offer of Employment to Lakiesha Speight as English Teacher (Exhibits 25 and 26). 
S.	 Offer of Employment to Philip Verona as History Teacher (Exhibits 27 and 28). 

On motion by Jack Callahan and second by Katie Smelas, the Board adopted the 
following resolution by unanimous vote: 

It is hereby RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of The Charter High School 
for Law and Social Justice (the “Board”) that the proposed contracts listed 
below are approved subject to attorney’s approval: 

PowerTools Advisory and Leadership Development Proposal (Exhibit 2);
 
Head Heart Hands LLC Proposal (Exhibit 3);
 
Charter Technology Solutions Proposals (Exhibits 4 and 5);
 
Shield Cleaning Services Proposal (Exhibit 6); and
 
Academy Furniture and Supplies Proposal (Exhibit 8).
 

3. Discussion of Summer Facilities Plan (Exhibit 29) 

Arthur Mockabee provided an update. 

4. Discussion of Executive Director Search (Exhibit 30) 

Linnet Tse and Jack Callahan provided an update. 

On motion by Janine Azriliant and second by Larry Grosberg, the Board adopted the 
following resolution by unanimous vote: 

It is hereby RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of The Charter High School 
for Law and Social Justice that the contract with Carney, Sandoe, and 
Associates is approved, contingent on attorney approval. 

5. Adoption of 2018-2019 Budget (Exhibit 31) 

On motion by Katie Smelas and second by Linnet Tse, the Board adopted the 
following resolution by unanimous vote: 

It is hereby RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of The Charter High School 
for Law and Social Justice that the budget for the 2018-19 academic year, 
attached as Exhibit 31, is approved. 
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Exhibit 1 to July 26, 2018 

6.	 Financial Report (Exhibit 32 

Jeanine Taylor provided an update. 

7.	 Principal’s Report 

Courtney Crawford and the Leadership Team provided an update. 

8. 	Chair’s Report 

Rick Marsico provided an update. 

9. Committee Reports 

Audit Committee: Rick Marsico provided an update. 
There were no other Committee reports this month. 

10.	 Election of Members of the Board of Trustees 

On motion by Janine Azriliant and second by Jenn LaMarsh, the Board adopted the 
following resolution by unanimous vote: 

It is hereby RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of The Charter High School 
for Law and Social Justice that the following individuals are elected as 
members of the Board of Trustees of The Charter High School for Law and 
Social Justice for a term of three years, from July 1, 2018 – June 30, 2021: 

Larry Grosberg 

11.	 Appointment of Committee Members 

On motion by Katie Smelas and second by Jack Callahan, the Board adopted the 
following resolution by unanimous vote: 

It is hereby RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of The Charter High School 
for Law and Social Justice that the following individuals are appointed as 
members of Committees of the Board of Trustees as follows for a term of one 
year, from July 1, 2018 – June 30, 2019: 

1.	 Audit Committee: Janine Azriliant; Jack Callahan; Rick Marsico 
2.	 Educational Accountability Committee: Jenn LaMarsh, Charles 

Flynn, Larry Grosberg, Lynn Bongiovanni 
3.	 Executive Committee (the Chair, Vice-Chair, Treasurer, and 

Secretary serve on the Executive Committee pursuant to the 
School’s by-laws) 

4.	 Finance Committee: Linnet Tse, Jack Callahan, Rick Marsico 



 

  
 

 
   

 
    

     
 

  
  

   
 

 
  
  
  
  

 
    

 
   
 

   
 
  
 

   
 

     
 

 
       

    
   

 
 

      
 

 
        

       
 

 
  

Exhibit 1 to July 26, 2018 

5.	 Fundraising Committee: Katie Smelas, Janine Azriliant, Larry 
Grosberg 

12.	 Election of Executive Committee 

On motion by Janine Azriliant and second by Jenn LaMarsh, the Board adopted the 
following resolution by unanimous vote: 

It is hereby RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of The Charter High School 
for Law and Social Justice (the “School”) that the following individuals are 
elected as officers of the School for a term of one year, from July 1, 2018 – 
June 30, 2019: 

Chair: Richard Marsico
 
Vice-Chair: Jack Callahan
 
Treasurer: Linnet Tse  

Secretary: Katie Smelas
 

13.	 New Business 

No new business. 

14.	 Statements from Members of the Public 

No member of the public signed up to speak. 

15.	 Executive Session 

On motion by Jenn LaMarsh and second by Katie Smelas, the Board unanimously 
voted to go into executive session. 

It is hereby RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of The Charter High School for 
Law and Social Justice that the Board adjourn from Public Session to Executive 
Session to discuss the employment of particular individuals, teacher 
certification, and organizational chart. 

On motion by Katie Smelas and second by Jenn LaMarsh, the Board unanimously 
voted to return to public session. 

It is hereby RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of The Charter High School for 
Law and Social Justice that the Board adjourn the Executive Session and return 
to Public Session. 
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16. Next Meeting 

The next Board meeting is to be determined at The Charter High School for Law 
and Social Justice. 

17. Adjournment 

Upon motion by Katie Smelas and second by Jenn LaMarsh the Board of Trustees of 
The Charter High School for Law and Social Justice unanimously voted to adjourn 
the meeting. 
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Instruction 

Math 

Science 

Chico Knight 
(ES) 

Joel Alvarado 

Michelle Barrera 

Rony Hosny 

Terrona Gaynor 
(CS) 

Courtney Crawford 
AssistantPrincipal/Cultureand Climate 

Dean of School 
Culture 

Arthur Mockabee 
DirectorofOperations 

Andre Wright 
ELA 

Stephfon Guidry 
Alicia McNeal 

Dasiy Rosa 

Jason Walcott 

Veronica Polanco 

Sharisse Grimes 

John Hemingway 

Grade Level 
Advisor 

Counseling Team 

Tanesha Brown 

Kamliah McCaskill 
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Peter 
Christian 
Narewski 
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PE 
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* 
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(LE) 

MichelleTin 
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Special 
Education 

Garrett Johnson 
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THE CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL FOR LAW AND SOCIAL JUSTICE
 

School Year: 2018-2019 School Calendar 

July 9 – July 26 
July 30 – August 9 

September 5 
September 6  
September 7 
September 10 -11 
September 19 
September 26 

October 8 
October 10 
October 16 
October 25 

November 6 
November 12 
November 22-23 
November 26 
November 27 

December 1 

December 24 – January 1 

January 21 
January 22 – 25 
January 28 
January 29 

February 5 
February 6 
February 7 
February 18 – 22 
February 25 
February 26 

March 12 
March 28 

April 1 
April 10 
April 19 – 26 
April 29 

May 27 
May 28 

June 4 
June 6 
June 14 
June 18 – 25 
June 26 
June 26 

Freshmen Summer Bridge Program (Only Incoming 9th Grade)
 
Upperclassmen Summer Bridge Program (Only 10th, 11th, and 12th Grade)
 

Student Orientation (Only 9th and 10th Grade Report – 1 pm Dismissal)
 
Student Orientation (Only 11th and 12th Grade Report – 1 pm Dismissal)
 
ALL Students Report
 
Rosh Hashanah (No School)
 
Yom Kippur (No School)
 
Back-to-School Night (6-7:30 pm)
 

Columbus Day Observed (No School)
 
PSAT Day 

Open House at 6 pm
 
Open House at 6pm
 

Election Day (No Students)/Professional Development Day #1
 
Veterans Day Observed (No School)
 
Thanksgiving Recess (No School)
 
Classes Resume 

Open House at 6 pm
 

Student Application Portal Opens 


Winter Recess (No School)
 

Dr. Martin Luther King Jr. Day (No School)
 
January Regents Testing 

Professional Development Day # 2 (No Students)
 
Classes Resume 


Lunar New Year (No School)
 
Classes Resume 

Open House at 6 pm
 
Mid-Winter Recess (No School)
 
Classes Resume 

Open House at 6 pm
 

Open House at 6 pm
 
Open House at 6 pm
 

Student Application Portal Close 

Student Lottery 

Spring Recess (No School)
 
Classes Resume 


Memorial Day (No School)
 
Classes Resume 


Eid al-Fitr (No School)
 
Professional Development Day #3 (No Students)
 
Senior Prom (TBD)
 
June Regents Testing 

Last Day for Students – Dismiss at 1 pm
 
1st Annual Commencement (TBD)
 

Total Number of Instructional Days: 169 
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